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          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Good afternoon.

          3  My name is Councilman Charles Barron. I'm Chair of

          4  the Higher Education Committee here in the City

          5  Council. And this is my colleagues, Miguel Martinez

          6  from Manhattan, Tony Avella from Queens. Baaba Halm,

          7  the Counsel, and Shauneequa Owusu, the brilliant

          8  Policy Analyst, and my Chief of Staff, Miss Viola

          9  Plummer. And I'd like the audience to say this with

         10  me, please. Viola Plummer... Go ahead.

         11                 AUDIENCE PARTICIPANTS: Viola Plummer.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON:... Is my Chief of

         13  Staff still.

         14                 AUDIENCE PARTICIPANTS: Is my Chief of

         15  Staff still.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: I can't hear you.

         17                 Thank you very much.

         18                 This is probably, even though I

         19  opened this hearing with a sense of humor, this is

         20  probably one of the most serious hearings that we

         21  will have. This hearing today, we're talking about

         22  the survival of an institution that will maintain

         23  its original mission, its original intent and

         24  purpose, which is to maintain access to higher

         25  education, and to all the resources in higher
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          2  education, from black students, brown students,

          3  Asian students, women who work hard, two and three

          4  jobs to maintain and try to get some higher

          5  education, and we've got to look at how standards,

          6  do they help or hurt and what's the purpose of this

          7  and what's going to happen to us in the future when

          8  we put these standards in place and why? What is the

          9  goal of putting these standards in place?

         10                 My concern is where are we going with

         11  this? How has it impacted us thus far, and the

         12  bottom line, how will this impact us in the future?

         13  I mean, this hearing here, I thought a lot about it,

         14  I had a lot of deep thought about it, because I have

         15  always been concerned about standards. When you're

         16  raising the bar but you're not raising the support

         17  networks, you're not raising the quality of

         18  teaching, and not raising the quality of the

         19  curricula material, not raising all of this stuff,

         20  but we're raising the bar like there's some magic in

         21  standards. Just put standards in place and students

         22  will do better. It doesn't make sense to me.

         23                 And I'm also concerned that it comes

         24  at a time where the City University, which is the

         25  largest university, public university system in the
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          2  nation, 11 senior colleges, six community colleges,

          3  an honors college, we have a school of law, graduate

          4  school of law, we have a school of medicine, the

          5  Sophie Davis School of Biomedical Technology,

          6  biomedical education, we have a graduate center, you

          7  know, we have an honors college, all of this stuff,

          8  236 degree students, 236,000 degree students -- 226,

          9  and 230,000, those who are in continuing education,

         10  adult education, you're talking about 450,000

         11  students, and in a City where K to 12, our education

         12  system stinks. It's failing our children from K to

         13  12. But we've got to look at K to 12, and then by

         14  the time we get CUNY, we've got to do something with

         15  the failing system from K to 12, and then a student

         16  comes to CUNY, we in CUNY and higher education have

         17  to maintain that openness for students of color,

         18  black students and Latino students in particular, in

         19  the midst of a failing K to 12 system where many of

         20  our students have finished 12 years of education and

         21  may not have a six, eight, tenth grade reading

         22  level, and they don't have no skills to get a job.

         23  It's not like K to 12 is helping you with any skills

         24  getting a job. And then K to 12 is not preparing you

         25  for higher ed. So, our only hope to a lot of our
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          2  people, and they're not children who are at risk,

          3  they are children who are oppressed, at risk. You

          4  know, we put labels of "culturally disadvantaged."

          5  No, these are oppressed children that live in

          6  economically oppressed neighborhoods that capitalism

          7  produces, and you add racism in the formula and

          8  gender discrimination, then you have out of that

          9  milieu, out of that environment, come students that

         10  have to go into a Board of Education system and not

         11  be taught the way they should be taught, could be

         12  taught, but the $15 billion budget for Department of

         13  Education, going up to $18 billion, then they've got

         14  to come here to CUNY.

         15                 CUNY has the College Now Program in

         16  the high schools. I think that's a good thing. CUNY

         17  had remediation, took it out of the four-year

         18  college, I think that's a bad thing. Harvard has

         19  remediation. You know, other colleges have

         20  remediation, but we can't have it on our campuses

         21  because the Board of Trustees decided that CUNY

         22  shouldn't have remediation in the four-year

         23  colleges. Or you can do it in the two-year colleges.

         24  And I'm a graduate of the community colleges, and I

         25  know that's a valuable education. I don't de-value
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          2  that, and I'm a graduate from a four-year college,

          3  Hunter in CUNY. But I'm very concerned about what's

          4  going on here. When I look at the enrollment from

          5  1999, the black African-American student enrollment

          6  was like 40 percent. It's down to 30. What

          7  attributed to that? Standards came there shortly

          8  after, and enrollment is going down.

          9                 So, when you look at imposing SAT

         10  scores, imposing or looking at possible your

         11  Regent's marks, or if you have Regent's, 75 on the

         12  Regent's and 480 in the SAT, then you won't have to

         13  take the exam that you have to get 27 on, 30 on. I

         14  don't even know what that means. We'll find out what

         15  27 means, what 30. It's raised to 30 in the math.

         16  But what is that three percent? What happens to

         17  those who do 28, 29? I don't know what these

         18  increases in math is about. I'm sure we'll be

         19  getting some increases in standards in English next.

         20  What's that going to be about?

         21                 I even know there is a move across

         22  the nation to go to subject testing instead of SAT

         23  scores. So, they're trying to rule out SAT scores

         24  because black and Latino people get into colleges,

         25  do better on SAT scores than they do on subject
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          2  testing.

          3                 So, now they want to abolish the SAT

          4  scores and the more comprehensive test, or subject

          5  testing, has more things involved and you need to be

          6  more prepared for, they want to put that in place.

          7  So where are we going, CUNY? Where are we going with

          8  this standard stuff, you know? And what's the

          9  purpose of it? It's not having the impact, the

         10  stated impact that people thought it might have. And

         11  I'm concerned when Benno Smith and Rudolph Giuliani

         12  castigated CUNY, said it should be shut down, and

         13  sometimes our response is an overacting response

         14  with all of these standards, that it's not going to

         15  allow us to live up to the ideal of CUNY, to leave

         16  it accessible to those in the City, to those

         17  brothers and sisters that are struggling, who can

         18  with remediation, greater support system, get

         19  through this CUNY system.

         20                 I had a hearing here one time talking

         21  about the standards, and we have to take four

         22  entrance examinations to get into the four-year

         23  college. If you fail one, you have to go to the

         24  two-year college. Well, about 14,000 people had to

         25  go to the two-year colleges and decided not to,
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          2  thousands decided not to, and they went to four-year

          3  colleges in private and other institutions, where

          4  they had no problems getting in, but we can't get

          5  into CUNY's four-year system.

          6                 So, I'm just concerned today. I'm

          7  very, very concerned. Usually I read my speeches and

          8  put them into the record. I'm speaking from the

          9  heart. I'm concerned about the racism, the sexism,

         10  the classism, what are we trying to be now? And even

         11  though it may be all right now, so you can give me

         12  the flower report on CUNY, on how even with these

         13  standards we still have this much enrollment, we

         14  still have that, I want to know, where are we going

         15  with this? What is this leading us to? And

         16  especially at a time where the public dollar

         17  commitment to CUNY is shrinking. The State is

         18  shrinking in its commitment to dollars and so is the

         19  City. They want CUNY now to raise more private

         20  money, raise more tuition-based money, so they can

         21  decrease the public commitment to the University and

         22  incrementally ease toward privatization.

         23                 It's a major concern of mine. You

         24  know, people say no. I'm watching it. And I watch

         25  the private sector financial commitment, have to
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          2  increase with the master plan, and the public sector

          3  commitment is increasing.

          4                 And I find it interesting that when

          5  CUNY was all white, and it was a free academy and

          6  open enrollment, free tuition, plenty remediation,

          7  all of a sudden the complexion changes and they say

          8  this was for economic reasons that they had imposed

          9  tuition in the 1970s. Well, you had free tuition in

         10  the 1930s during the depression, when it was white.

         11  So, if you can have free tuition during when people

         12  are jumping out windows because of the depression,

         13  you could have kept free tuition in CUNY and open

         14  enrollment.

         15                 I'm concerned about where are we

         16  going with these standards? And is it to really

         17  bring greater value to the CUNY degree in the

         18  marketplace? I don't think the CUNY degree has been

         19  de-valued in the marketplace. I think that's a

         20  perception that Giuliani and Benno Smith put out

         21  there and we bought it, and start doing all kinds of

         22  stuff.

         23                 They say, what, about a third of the

         24  people that have college degrees in the City are

         25  CUNY degrees? About a third. About a third of the
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          2  people who have degrees in New York City have CUNY

          3  degrees and they're working, and that some of them

          4  are doing fine. I know some people in the hood that

          5  have Harvard degrees flipping burgers. So, we got to

          6  really look at where we're going with this, which is

          7  why I wanted to have this hearing, and I wanted us

          8  to really get deeply involved with this and make

          9  sure that we're moving in the right direction to

         10  maintain the integrity of the original intent of

         11  this free academy, this free university, this

         12  university of opportunity and access for those who

         13  have been locked out, rejected, oppressed,

         14  depressed, repressed, every kind of press you can

         15  think of, that's what we've been. And I'm going to

         16  fight tooth and nail to keep this university open

         17  for those who it was intended to be open for.

         18                 Thank you very much. You can give me

         19  a hand-clap, I'd appreciate it. Thank you.

         20                 Tony, did you clap?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: No.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: No, you were just

         23  deep in thought?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Deep in

         25  thought.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: With that we will

          3  have our first panel of the University come up, and

          4  Ms. Halm will swear you in.

          5                 MS. HALM: Selma Botman, Garrie Moore,

          6  Ben Corpus, Sadie Bragg.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: One of the things

          8  I do want to say to you while they are gathering, is

          9  that we did get a commitment to the University, and

         10  I appreciate this, from the Administration. Often

         11  times we have our hearings and the Administration

         12  makes their presentation and they have to leave and

         13  do other things. They are committed to stay and hear

         14  from you today. So, it's a good thing. I want to

         15  thank Jay and John for honoring that commitment, to

         16  stay around and hear what other people have to say.

         17                 MS. HALM: Please raise your right

         18  hands.

         19                 Do you swear that the testimony

         20  you're about to give today will be true and

         21  accurate?

         22                 (Witnesses collectively stated yes.)

         23                 MS. HALM: Please state your names for

         24  the record before you begin.

         25                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:
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          2  Good afternoon, Chair and members of the Committee.

          3  My name is Selma Botman and I am CUNY's Executive

          4  Vice Chancellor and University provost. Testifying

          5  with me today are Garrie Moore, Vice Chancellor for

          6  Student Affairs, Sadie Bragg, Senior Vice President

          7  of Academic Affairs at CUNY's Borough of Manhattan

          8  Community College, and Ben Corpus, Vice President

          9  for Student Development at CUNY's Baruch College.

         10                 I appreciate the opportunity to speak

         11  with you this afternoon about CUNY's admission

         12  standards. Every consideration of our admissions and

         13  academic requirements begins with an examination of

         14  the skills of our students, what students need to

         15  succeed in a world that demands much of them.

         16                 In particular, we are aware that

         17  there is nearly unanimous agreement among the

         18  academic, scientific, government and business

         19  communities that the United States is falling behind

         20  other countries in its students proficiency in

         21  science, technology, engineering and mathematics.

         22  This is called STEM disciplines.

         23                 Institutions of higher education

         24  cannot ignore their key role in preparing students

         25  to thrive in a competitive global environment, one
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          2  that is as likely to be found in any of the five

          3  boroughs as in a foreign country.

          4                 As CUNY's growing enrollment

          5  indicates, more and more students are looking to

          6  advanced study to help them navigate this

          7  environment. Indeed, though some institutions in the

          8  State may be projecting a decline in student

          9  applications in the years ahead, CUNY has not seen

         10  signs of an impending drop.

         11                 While no standard will ever be a

         12  perfect indicator of success, our measures for

         13  admission are a critical means of helping students

         14  determine their preparedness and ensure that they

         15  receive the support they need to embark on an

         16  appropriate course of study. My office previously

         17  provided you with a copy of a memo I sent to the

         18  presidents and chief academic officers of all of the

         19  CUNY campuses in August. This memo details changes

         20  in our mathematics standards.

         21                 This adjustment to the criteria by

         22  which we measure readiness for college level math is

         23  a continuation of the reforms that CUNY adopted in

         24  1999 to help assure that students at the senior

         25  colleges would be better prepared to succeed in
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          2  college level work.

          3                 Our most recent changes to CUNY's

          4  mathematics standards have been prompted both by the

          5  improved academic performance of our students, and

          6  by recommendations and data that indicate the

          7  preconditions necessary for success in college level

          8  mathematics.

          9                 The University employs multiple

         10  measures of minimum proficiency, including the SAT,

         11  the Regents tests, and the COMPASS tests. Students

         12  may achieve proficiency through any one of these

         13  tests. For example, a student who does not qualify

         14  based on the SAT, may qualify through either the

         15  Regents or the COMPASS tests.

         16                 Over the past several years, the

         17  academic profile of CUNY's entering students has

         18  risen. Mean SAT scores, Regents scores, and high

         19  school averages have trended upward at the senior

         20  colleges. In addition, students are entering their

         21  freshman year having completed more college

         22  preparatory course work than in the past.

         23                 We know that students who have strong

         24  preparation in mathematics as evidenced by their

         25  SAT, Regents and COMPASS test scores. And when they
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          2  have high scores, they perform better in their

          3  college-level mathematics courses, courses that

          4  fulfill general education requirements and open the

          5  doors to majors in the sciences, engineering and

          6  mathematics. National research links good

          7  performance in both high school and college-level

          8  mathematics to a higher probability of earning a

          9  baccalaureate degree.

         10                 Mathematics standards have not been

         11  adjusted across the University since 1999. CUNY's

         12  Mathematics Discipline Council, comprising the

         13  chairs of all of the Math Departments of the

         14  Associate and Baccalaureate programs, have

         15  recommended an increase in the University's

         16  mathematics standards in order to more accurately

         17  reflect the minimum competency required to succeed

         18  in high level, college level math courses.

         19                 As my memo in August indicates, it is

         20  our intention, subject to input from faculty and

         21  administrators at the colleges, to implement the

         22  following changes in our mathematic standards, which

         23  will take effect for students in the spring of 2009.

         24                 Our preliminary information indicates

         25  that the colleges may in some cases suggest even
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          2  higher standards.

          3                 For Baruch, Brooklyn, City, Hunter

          4  and Queens Colleges, the proficiency standard for

          5  math SATs will increase from 480 to 510. The math

          6  proficiency standard based on the COMPASS tests will

          7  rise from 30-30, that is 30 on the pre-algebra

          8  module and 30 on the algebra module to 45-45, in

          9  order to bring it in line with the new SAT standard.

         10  The math proficiency cut point on the Regents A or B

         11  will remain at 75.

         12                 For baccalaureate students at Lehman,

         13  York, and the comprehensive colleges, the SAT score

         14  will be raised to 500, and the COMPASS minimums to

         15  35-30. Again, the Regents Math A and B standard will

         16  remain at 75.

         17                 For Associate Degree students at the

         18  community colleges and the comprehensive

         19  institutions, COMPASS scores are used to place

         20  students into remedial or credit-bearing courses.

         21  For these students, the COMPASS standard will remain

         22  at 30-30, below which all Associate Degree students

         23  are placed into remedial course work. Campuses may

         24  decide to set a higher standard for exiting from

         25  remediation and higher prerequisites for placement
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          2  into credit-bearing courses. This will be a campus

          3  decision.

          4                 As I noted in my August memo,

          5  Chancellor Goldstein has discussed with each college

          6  president the need to consult government groups,

          7  mathematics faculty and other faculty who use

          8  mathematics in quantitative reasoning in their

          9  disciplines to determine whether further adjustments

         10  are necessary.

         11                 As the testimony of Senior Vice

         12  President Bragg, the Vice President Corpus will

         13  demonstrate, each campus must make appropriate

         14  decisions based on its mission, its consultative

         15  process, its knowledge of its student population.

         16                 These changes to our mathematic

         17  standards were proposed only after extensive data

         18  analysis.

         19                 The increase in the SAT cut score

         20  required for entering students to qualify for

         21  admission into CUNY's senior colleges is expected to

         22  effect only about four percent of the regularly

         23  admitted students at Baruch, Brooklyn, City, Hunter

         24  and Queens who have met the previous standard, and

         25  six percent of students at other baccalaureate
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          2  colleges.

          3                 Students who do not qualify for

          4  admission to Baruch, Brooklyn, City, Hunter or

          5  Queens, based on their SAT score, or based on

          6  scoring a 75 or higher on the math Regents exam, can

          7  still gain entry by taking the COMPASS math test and

          8  scoring 45 in each of the two segments.

          9                 Based on the data from the current

         10  freshman class, we know that about one-third of

         11  those who take the COMPASS test upon entry to one of

         12  the colleges can meet those cut scores. Many others

         13  will be able to meet the cut scores after completing

         14  workshops, courses, or other skills instruction in

         15  free summer programs.

         16                 Vice Chancellor Moore will discuss

         17  some of the programs and services available to

         18  students who need additional academic support and

         19  instruction.

         20                 The vast majority of students who do

         21  not meet admissions requirements in any of those

         22  ways will be able to meet the requirements of the

         23  other baccalaureate colleges, Lehman, York, John

         24  Jay, Medgar Evers, New York College of Technology,

         25  and Staten Island. And two-thirds of the students
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          2  will be expected to meet these new standards.

          3                 At the other baccalaureate colleges,

          4  Lehman, York, John Jay, Medgar Evers, New York City

          5  College of Technology, Staten Island. We expect that

          6  at least half the students who will not be exempt

          7  from the COMPASS testing based on their SAT or

          8  Regent scores will score high enough on the COMPASS

          9  to gain admission. They will reach the 35-30

         10  standard.

         11                 The remaining students will have the

         12  opportunity to build their math skills over the

         13  summer in order to meet the new admission standards

         14  by the start of the term. Or they may elect to

         15  enroll at a CUNY community college to improve their

         16  math skills, earn an Associate's Degree, and then

         17  transfer to a senior college to complete their

         18  Baccalaureate Degree.

         19                 I would like to take this opportunity

         20  to reiterate the University's deeply held belief in

         21  the mission to offer educational opportunity to

         22  students of all backgrounds in New York City. This

         23  belief informs every academic conversation at the

         24  University. We do not make any academic changes

         25  quickly or randomly. Rather, we do so with an
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          2  enormous sense of responsibility to our students and

          3  with recommendations from faculty and a thorough

          4  review of appropriate data.

          5                 These changes to our mathematics

          6  standards go to the very core of an academic

          7  mandate. We do every student a disservice. We

          8  maintain requirements that do not adequately or

          9  accurately reflect the minimum competency required

         10  to succeed in college-level math.

         11                 As graduates face increasing

         12  competition in a more global environment, basic

         13  proficiency, particularly in mathematics, is

         14  essential to their success.

         15                 Our aim is to give students the best

         16  information we can about the necessary proficiency

         17  levels and to offer them multiple pathways and

         18  opportunities to achieve those levels. As our

         19  students have demonstrated again and again, they are

         20  more than capable of rising to academic challenges.

         21  They deserve a college degree that truly reflects

         22  their abilities and their readiness for a

         23  competitive marketplace.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 VICE CHANCELLOR MOORE: Good
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          2  afternoon, Chair Barron, members of the Committee. I

          3  am Garrie Moore, CUNY's Vice Chancellor for Student

          4  Affairs. I am pleased to have the opportunity to

          5  talk to you briefly about the University's efforts

          6  to support students readiness for college level

          7  work.

          8                 As Executive Vice Chancellor Botman

          9  mentioned, the University's proposal to raise

         10  mathematic standards included a full consideration

         11  of initiatives and interventions that would help

         12  students meet these minimum levels of proficiency.

         13                 A student's best preparation for

         14  college is a strong secondary education. CUNY's

         15  collaborative program, the New York City Department

         16  of Education, College Now, helps to ensure that

         17  expectations for college work are communicated and

         18  met.

         19                 College Now enables public high

         20  school students to take free college credit courses,

         21  or courses to help them prepare for college level

         22  work. The program is currently reaching more than

         23  20,000 students at nearly 300 public schools, an

         24  increase of more than 200 percent from the 6,795

         25  students enrolled in the program in 1999.
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          2                 Research has shown that students who

          3  participate in College Now, tend to do better

          4  academically than their counterparts once they enter

          5  college. And many College Now students enter CUNY

          6  senior colleges which have more stringent admission

          7  requirements.

          8                 For example, in Fall '06, more than

          9  52 percent of the public school graduates who

         10  entered CUNY's Hunter College had been in College

         11  Now. CUNY also has an extensive network of

         12  partnerships focusing on college expectations and

         13  preparations.

         14                 Thirteen high schools operate on CUNY

         15  campuses, and during the '06/'07 school year, ten

         16  early college schools were operating in partnership

         17  with nine CUNY colleges.

         18                 In addition, the University has

         19  instituted a number of support services that were

         20  not available during the time of open admissions,

         21  including intensive English Language Immersion

         22  classes, and free summer and Winter Skills Immersion

         23  Programs.

         24                 These Immersion Programs, which teach

         25  essential skills and review test-taking strategies,
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          2  are aimed at helping CUNY students succeed in

          3  meeting the requirements of college-level work.

          4                 Almost 15,000 students enrolled in

          5  the University Skills Immersion Program in Summer

          6  2005, and I should note that this enrollment is

          7  about the same as it was in 1999. This indicates

          8  that although the University's enrollment has grown,

          9  the first-time freshman today generally are better

         10  prepared and less likely to need the additional

         11  skills work.

         12                 In addition to these programs, the

         13  CUNY website offers a description of the COMPASS

         14  mathematics test, as well as a sample test and

         15  sample problems. Our students' successful completion

         16  of their academic requirements depends in large part

         17  on our support services.

         18                 CUNY offers a full complement of

         19  services that play a significant role in student

         20  persistence and graduation. These include counseling

         21  services and workshops in time management, study

         22  skills and coping with stress, test taking and

         23  communication accommodations for students with

         24  learning and physical disabilities and health and

         25  wellness services from personal one-on-one care to
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          2  workshops and seminars on healthy lifestyles that

          3  help students make choices conducive to educational

          4  success.

          5                 In addition, our Leadership Academy

          6  teaches students important skills crucial to life

          7  and work, including communication, motivation,

          8  negotiation, citizenship, responsibility, and

          9  emotional intelligence.

         10                 It is the rare students who can meet

         11  his or her classroom challenges without network

         12  support that fosters confidence and resilience.

         13                 I must also emphasize the critical

         14  role that CUNY's six community colleges play in

         15  helping students to build their academic skills

         16  through a range of high-quality programs and

         17  services.

         18                 In fact, a 2007 Community College

         19  weekly report indicated that CUNY community colleges

         20  are among the nation's top producers of Associate's

         21  Degrees in business, education and computer and

         22  information sciences, as well as some of the top

         23  producers of Associate's Degrees awarded to minority

         24  students nationwide.

         25                 Success at a CUNY community college
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          2  facilitates entry to other educational

          3  opportunities, as well. Seventy percent of CUNY

          4  Associate of Arts and Associate of Science

          5  recipients transfer after receiving their degrees.

          6                 I assure you that CUNY's

          7  student-affairs professionals are committed to

          8  helping every student prepare for and succeed in

          9  college-level work. Achieving quantitative literacy

         10  is critical to students' ability to acquire

         11  high-level skills in their field of study, and to

         12  their future employment prospects.

         13                 The University will be there at each

         14  step of the way to ensure that our students have

         15  every opportunity to reach those educational goals.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 DR. BRAGG: Good afternoon, Mr.

         18  Chairman, and the honorable members of the City

         19  Council Committee on Higher Education. I am Sadie

         20  Bragg, the Senior Vice President of Academic

         21  Affairs, and Professor of Mathematics at Borough of

         22  Manhattan Community College.

         23                 On behalf of BMCC, I welcome the

         24  opportunity to join my colleagues to speak to you

         25  today on "Changing CUNY Admissions Standards."
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          2  According to the American Mathematical Association

          3  of Two-Year Colleges' document, Beyond Crossroads:

          4  Implementing Mathematics Standards in the First Two

          5  Years of College, all students should have equitable

          6  access to high quality, challenging, effective

          7  mathematics instruction and support services. To

          8  ensure that all 19,223 students at BMCC are

          9  successful, we at the college take seriously our

         10  responsibility in meeting the national two-year

         11  college standards so that students graduate from

         12  BMCC, transfer to a four-year college, and into the

         13  workforce. To this end, the college has always had

         14  high standards in the mathematics program. In fact,

         15  our current admission standards for taking a college

         16  level, credit bearing mathematics course for

         17  non-mathematic and science majors, exceeds the

         18  proposed CUNY admission standards for mathematics at

         19  community colleges.

         20                 We take great pride in the fact that

         21  because of our strong developmental mathematics

         22  program, students master their prerequisite skills

         23  for entrance into our credit-bearing mathematics

         24  courses.

         25                 To further our students' quantitative
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          2  skills, the Mathematics Department at BMCC

          3  instituted a college level credit-bearing course in

          4  quantitative reasoning, as well as a mathematics

          5  across the curriculum program for all faculty.

          6                 The purpose of this program is to

          7  ensure that the faculty across the disciplines,

          8  works with mathematics faculty to integrate

          9  quantitative reasoning and critical thinking skills

         10  into all content areas, thereby giving students the

         11  opportunity to see that mathematics plays an

         12  important role in their entire curriculum.

         13                 The college is similarly proud of the

         14  precalculus pass rates among our students, who

         15  successfully complete their developmental work and

         16  exit remediation. Sixty-nine percent of them pass

         17  precalculus, compared to the 78 percent who pass who

         18  do not require remediation. Students who exit

         19  mathematics remediation experience even greater

         20  relative success in their credit-bearing mathematics

         21  courses, including calculus, where the pass rate is

         22  78 percent compared to 84 percent among students who

         23  do not require remediation.

         24                 Moreover, their success in

         25  mathematics does not end at BMCC. A 2006 CUNY report
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          2  indicates that BMCC students who complete

          3  precalculus, that students who complete precalculus

          4  at a community college are likely to pass calculus

          5  at a CUNY senior college, as are students who

          6  completed precalculus at a four-year college.

          7                 The success of BMCC students

          8  continues even after graduation. Approximately 50

          9  percent of our graduates go on to pursue a degree at

         10  a CUNY four-year college, within one year of

         11  receiving their BMCC degree.

         12                 Another ten percent attend four-year

         13  colleges outside of the CUNY system. While a large

         14  number of graduates who do not transfer to a

         15  four-year college are prepared for successful

         16  careers in nursing, respiratory therapy, and

         17  paramedics. And not on my script, I have to include

         18  videowatts technology (phonetic), since the

         19  cameraman is a graduate of BMCC.

         20                 Our Fall of 2005 data show that the

         21  mean GPA of 1,000 students who transfer to a CUNY

         22  baccalaureate program ranges from 3.22 to 2.10. The

         23  one-year retention rate in a CUNY baccalaureate

         24  program is 77 percent among the BMCC students who

         25  transfer, compared to the 73 percent among all
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          2  students who transfer.

          3                 A recent example of how well our

          4  students do, and how well they perform upon transfer

          5  to a CUNY baccalaureate program is as follows:

          6                 In Fall 2006, 228 BMCC students

          7  transferred to Baruch.

          8                 Of those who reported their

          9  ethnicity, 28 percent were white, 27 percent were

         10  Asian, 22 percent were black, 14 percent were

         11  Hispanic, and nine percent reported other.

         12                 These students had a one-year

         13  retention rate of 93 percent.

         14                 In their first year at Baruch, they

         15  achieved a mean GPA of 2.85. The strength of

         16  mathematics education at BMCC has helped the college

         17  gain national recognition as an Associate Degree

         18  institution.

         19                 According to the Community College

         20  Week's 2007 Top 100, among all of the community

         21  colleges in the United States, BMCC is rated 14th in

         22  conferring Associate Degrees in all disciplines,

         23  second in conferring degrees in the area of Business

         24  Management, fifth in Computer and Information

         25  Systems, and seventh in Education. BMCC is ranked
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          2  third in conferring Associate Degrees to black

          3  students, 12th to Hispanic students, and 19th to

          4  Asian-American students.

          5                 We credit this success at BMCC to

          6  dedicated faculty and staff who teach and support

          7  the efforts of our students, and most of all, we

          8  credit our students, who work diligently in

          9  succeeding to meet the high standards set by BMCC

         10  and CUNY.

         11                 Again, I thank you for this

         12  opportunity to share with you the BMCC story, and I

         13  thank you, Council members.

         14                 MR. CORPUS: Good afternoon, Council

         15  members. I want to thank you all for this

         16  opportunity to speak about higher education, public

         17  higher education in the City of New York. My name is

         18  Ben Corpus. I am Vice President for Student Affairs

         19  and Enrollment Management in Baruch College.

         20  Previously I was the Vice President for Enrollment

         21  Management to Hostos Community College, prior to

         22  gaining access to Baruch.

         23                 I want to tell you a little bit about

         24  Baruch. I want to tell you a little bit about the

         25  admissions standards changes and what they would
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          2  mean to Baruch students, and then I want to talk a

          3  little bit about our programs that we have to

          4  provide access and success, academic success to our

          5  students at Baruch College.

          6                 Baruch College is a college of 15,700

          7  students. We have of those, 12,800 who are

          8  undergraduate students and about 3,000 graduate

          9  students. Sixty percent of our under-graduate

         10  population are students of color. Forty percent of

         11  our students are the first in their family to attend

         12  college, and 49 percent speak English as a second

         13  language. Seventy-six percent, or three out of four

         14  of our students, work to pay for college while

         15  they're in school, and about a quarter of them work

         16  more than 35 hours a week, usually at two or three

         17  jobs.

         18                 And despite all of these challenges,

         19  57 percent of them graduate within six years, one of

         20  the highest graduation rates of an urban public

         21  college in the country.

         22                 The new standards represents a change

         23  for CUNY, but I believe and the college believes

         24  that it is not one that will impact us adversely in

         25  any of the realms that we talked about earlier. The
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          2  math scores, the SAT math scores and the COMPASS

          3  test on the increase will not impact a great amount

          4  of students.

          5                 We did a simulation, took a look at

          6  what the new increase in admission standards would

          7  look like against our Fall of '07 class. It would

          8  impact 46 students in total. Of those 46 students,

          9  it would not disproportionately impact any students

         10  who were economically oppressed, if you will. Three

         11  of them would be -- three would be Latino, seven

         12  would be black and 13 would have been white.

         13                 We applied the new standards to the

         14  Fall of '05 class as well, and saw the exact same

         15  statistics.

         16                 We believe that the new standards

         17  with our SAT score, movements to a 510 also would

         18  not impact us adversely. One of the reasons is

         19  Baruch's SAT scores have met the 510 math for the

         20  past ten years. The average SAT now at Baruch

         21  College is 600.

         22                 But the SAT is not something that

         23  defines Baruch College most certainly. An important

         24  part of what we do is very familiar to us in terms

         25  of transfer function at the college.
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          2                 Vice President Bragg mentioned how

          3  many students came in last fall for transferring in

          4  from BMCC. This year another 240 students from BMCC

          5  came into Baruch College and about 190 came from

          6  LaGuardia Community College, our biggest feeder

          7  campuses.

          8                 Something to think about is we have

          9  an in-coming class of about 3,000 students. More

         10  than half of them are transfer students, and when we

         11  take a look at those students who would have taken

         12  the SAT coming out of high school, the average SAT

         13  was 929. They would not have gained access, but they

         14  did gain access because of the comprehensive

         15  integrated university where they go to the CUNY

         16  community colleges and transfer over to Baruch

         17  College.

         18                 Sixty-five percent of our students

         19  come from CUNY Community Colleges upon transfer.

         20                 When they're here, we have programs

         21  built in place. As Vice Chancellor Moore mentioned,

         22  we have free Immersion programs over the summer.

         23  This year we mandated it. Next year we're expanding

         24  our Immersion programs free of charge to those

         25  students who do not meet that COMPASS test score, of
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          2  which, as I mentioned, are not that many.

          3                 However, we do look to increase our

          4  access in these programs. In addition, we have our

          5  SEEK Program, which provides supplemental

          6  instruction, tutoring, one-on-one counseling, and

          7  academic advisement in a way that provides retention

          8  rates that are above the national average at 91

          9  percent.

         10                 We also have an intense ESL program,

         11  both out of continued education, as well as SEEK,

         12  and an award winning tutoring center that has won

         13  accolades nationally that serve a number of our

         14  students, both who are high ability in achieving,

         15  our students of color, as well as our SEEK

         16  population.

         17                 In sum, I would say that I believe

         18  these standards help the University, help Baruch

         19  College, on a national realm. Our career placement

         20  is a very important aspect of preparing our

         21  students, and we find that these students are

         22  gaining access to the front office jobs of the

         23  highest ranked corporations, the Fortune 500 and the

         24  Fortune 100 companies, when they were not in the

         25  past because of the access, because of the
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          2  opportunity that we provided in the education, that

          3  we provided as well.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: I want to thank

          6  all of you very much for your testimony. And I

          7  wanted this to be a real hearing, you know, it is

          8  real, but in this particular hearing, you know, it's

          9  not going to be just a few model schools, model

         10  programs making a presentation at a hearing, and

         11  making it appear as that's what's happening across

         12  the entire campus with all of the other schools as

         13  well.

         14                 So, we want to look at the entire

         15  campus and commend those who have done well. But

         16  there has been a drop in the African-American

         17  enrollment since 19 -- even at Baruch; is that

         18  correct?

         19                 MR. CORPUS: That is correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: How do you

         21  account for that?

         22                 MR. CORPUS: As I understand it, the

         23  population, African-American population has dropped

         24  since 1999. I wasn't here at the time, but I believe

         25  the community colleges absorbed the students, black,
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          2  Hispanic and Asian, and they transferred back in,

          3  those who wanted to continue on for primarily a

          4  business degree and were not lost completely

          5  throughout the system.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: And then for you,

          7  how do you account for the 40 percent in '99, 30

          8  percent African-American enrollment now?

          9                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

         10  Actually, Chairman Barron, the number of

         11  African-American students at City University has

         12  increased since 1999.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: I'm talking about

         14  the overall, the 40 percent in the City University

         15  of African enrollment; is that an accurate piece of

         16  data?

         17                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

         18  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: That's what I'm

         20  talking about. So, I'm talking about the 40 percent

         21  of the entire University in '99 now is down to 30

         22  percent. That's what I want to address.

         23                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: I

         24  want to just repeat that the number of

         25  African-American students has risen by 626 students
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          2  across the University. And as you said in your

          3  eloquent opening remarks, City University is an

          4  institution that serves the population of New York,

          5  and in fact, we have seen since 1999 demographic

          6  changes in New York City. So, as some populations

          7  have been decreasing, other populations are

          8  increasing and City University reflects the City in

          9  which it sits.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: So what you're

         11  telling me is that since there are less blacks in

         12  New York City, that's the reason why there is less

         13  black student enrollment? It went down in CUNY? Is

         14  that what you're trying to say?

         15                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

         16  Well, in 1999, 30 percent of CUNY was

         17  African-American. In 2006 it was down to 28.1

         18  percent. So, a small drop did occur.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Is that accurate?

         20  I thought it was 40 percent?

         21                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

         22  Yes, we're looking at first-time freshmen. I'm not

         23  sure how you're counting it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: I think we're

         25  looking at the overall. We're looking at the overall
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          2  number.

          3                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

          4  Yes. Well, the way we report data is consistent with

          5  the federal government's requirement, and we look at

          6  first-time freshmen --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: I got you with

          8  the first-time freshmen, but, see, I'm concerned

          9  that when we get past, when we get out of the

         10  papers, out of the statistics, out of all of that,

         11  and we're looking at the black community, and

         12  students come into CUNY, it was down ten percent.

         13  And then we could split it up and say, you know,

         14  freshmen and all of that stuff, but it is

         15  decreasing. And I would submit to you, I think the

         16  standards have something to do with that.

         17                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: In

         18  2006, 28 percent of the --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: I'm sorry, I

         20  don't want to cut you off, but I just want to

         21  acknowledge that Council Member Seabrook is here

         22  from the Bronx, and Council Member Gale Brewer is

         23  here as well, and Council Member Avella, who is

         24  usually consistent and always here, had to leave for

         25  another engagement.
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          2                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: In

          3  2006, 25.7 percent of eligible, college-eligible

          4  students in New York City were African-American, and

          5  in fact we know that 28.1 percent of first-time

          6  freshmen in CUNY are black. So, we are

          7  disproportionately, you know, represented,

          8  over-represented, if you will.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: If you're pulling

         10  out statistics, I could shoot some back at you and

         11  you can shoot some back at me, and you can make

         12  yours look good, I can make it look not so good and

         13  we can have a little statistical war here, but there

         14  are less African-American students.  From '99 to the

         15  present it has decreased.

         16                 MR. CORPUS: Chairman Barron, one of

         17  the things that I could tell you that we're seeing

         18  is an immense increase in colleges and universities

         19  beyond New York City, who someone once said to me,

         20  is stealing the CUNY mission.

         21                 So, we see, for example, Arizona

         22  State University having a program that if you have a

         23  household income under $40,000 a year and meet their

         24  qualifications, not only do they get you a free

         25  ride, they give you room, board, tuition and books.
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          2  And I was watching Emery University --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Did you say

          4  Arizona?

          5                 MR. CORPUS: Arizona State.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: There's only

          7  about three of us in the whole State of Arizona.

          8                 MR. CORPUS: What I'm suggesting to

          9  you, though, is the quality students that we have

         10  coming out of our New York City public schools,

         11  though, are being competed for nationally. And it

         12  gets very difficult to compete for packages that --

         13  and I'm saying we are, thanks to the CUNY Honors

         14  Program and others, and I'm just talking about one

         15  perspective that I'd like you to understand --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Well, we

         17  understand. Believe me, I'm a staunch supporter of

         18  CUNY, so I don't need, you know, the commercial. I'm

         19  supporting CUNY and I think CUNY is doing a great

         20  job in some areas. I'm concerned about a trend we

         21  might be setting.

         22                 MR. CORPUS: I understand.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: And I'm concerned

         24  about the future, and what's CUNY going to look like

         25  in the future?
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          2                 So, my concern with Baruch, this

          3  lower enrollment or drop in African-American

          4  students is a concern, and I want to know why it

          5  happened, and what we can do to put a stop on it,

          6  and did standards have any role in it? Those are the

          7  things that I'm really after. I don't doubt -- I

          8  mean, I'm a CUNY graduate, and I'm probably the

          9  brightest Councilman amongst us, so because of my

         10  CUNY degree. Oh, no, Mr. Seabrook has one too. Do

         11  you have one? Oh, Gale too. Oh, okay, so we're all

         12  very bright then. Shucks, I've got to get a new

         13  committee. So, we're all very, very bright and proud

         14  of our CUNY degree.

         15                 So, this is not a bash CUNY session.

         16  I just want you to get that very, very clear. It's

         17  not a bash CUNY session. So, I don't want anybody to

         18  get defensive, and let's have this statistical war,

         19  and if I say something, then you want to say

         20  something to make sure -- you know, it's not that.

         21  I'm not here to bash CUNY. I'm here to improve it.

         22  To study what's happening and what's the future,

         23  what's CUNY going to look like in the future, if we

         24  keep going this way with these standards. And I'm

         25  just really concerned about that because standards
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          2  in some institutions, whether it's business, whether

          3  it's affirmative action, has been a cold word for

          4  racism for us. Blockage, for denying access, and

          5  they use the word standards, and get into standards

          6  and make it and talk about quality and all of this

          7  stuff, and that don't be ashamed of yourself, you

          8  can rise to these standards. You have the

          9  capabilities. This is what they do with affirmative

         10  action. So, you don't want to lower standards to get

         11  blacks in college. We're not lowering anything. The

         12  standards that we have to rise to to get in college

         13  and make it in anything is extremely high.

         14                 So, we're not talking about lowering

         15  things. We're not talking about not having some kind

         16  of a standard, but I'm questioning where are we

         17  going with this? Because when I see decrease in

         18  enrollment, and particularly African-American

         19  students and others, I draw concern about that. And

         20  I know the English is coming next, and I just think

         21  that with all this I have a grave concern and I'd

         22  just like for us to address those issues, and not

         23  feel that you have to be defensive and give me the

         24  flowery story of CUNY, because I'm already on board

         25  with that.
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          2                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

          3  Councilman, if I might, I would like to thank you

          4  and the other Council members for your support of

          5  City University. We deeply appreciate your financial

          6  and emotional support for all of our institutions.

          7  So, I genuinely convey that.

          8                 I want to speak philosophically but I

          9  feel compelled, just to go back to one statistic, if

         10  you'll allow me; and that is, the number of blacks

         11  at CUNY has not dropped. It has risen. There are,

         12  since 1999 there are 626 more black students at

         13  senior colleges and 887 more black students at

         14  community colleges. So, we have more than 1,500 more

         15  black students today than we had in 1999.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Where are the

         17  increases, in the senior or community colleges?

         18                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: At

         19  the senior colleges we have 626 students more today

         20  than we had in 1999. At the community colleges we

         21  have 887 students more today.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: What about

         23  proportionately? Because you know, like in colleges

         24  there could be an increase of everybody every year,

         25  but, you know, what can be an increase, if like, say
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          2  each year, I'm just throwing out a number, let's say

          3  each year we get 20 percent African-American

          4  students as an increase, and then next year we get

          5  ten percent. It's still an increase. That's why

          6  statistics are, you know, of the first-time freshmen

          7  increases, how many students are leaving, how many

          8  are not graduating. You know, it's just a lot of

          9  ways we could play with statistics, and I just want

         10  to get to the heart of where the problem might be,

         11  and that's why I'm glad others will be here to speak

         12  to it and you can hear their reaction.

         13                 Has construction and support services

         14  in math, and particularly in the community colleges

         15  -- because you know, sometimes we increase

         16  standards without increasing instruction and support

         17  services.

         18                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: I

         19  think you are absolutely right in pointing to both

         20  the Department of Education and to City University.

         21  Both institutions have to work together to ensure

         22  that all students have the kind of preparation they

         23  need in high school, K-12, through high school, not

         24  only to graduate from high school, but to be

         25  successful in college. And it is truly unethical to
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          2  prepare students to go to college only to find that

          3  they have insufficient preparation to be successful.

          4                 So, I'd like to convey to you that we

          5  are in discussions with the Department of Education

          6  on what it takes, not only to graduate from high

          7  school, but what it takes to be successful at a CUNY

          8  college. And there is a delta between those two

          9  standards. We have to close that gap, and we are in

         10  this conversation. And in addition to that, you

         11  know, we're working at the issue of student support

         12  in a number of different ways. You have been very

         13  successful on the Black Male Initiative, and we are

         14  working on pipeline issues, that is recruiting

         15  students from high school into CUNY campuses, as

         16  well as mentoring programs. Because we believe that

         17  those will contribute to student success.

         18                 We are working with math faculty and

         19  others who teach in the general education

         20  curriculum, so that we put a spotlight on student

         21  academic support services to ensure that students

         22  will get what they need.

         23                 We are looking right now at the

         24  Summer Immersion Program, because this is a good

         25  news story for students and for City University.
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          2  Students do really rise to the occasion through

          3  Summer Immersion, and we will do more through Summer

          4  Immersion to assure that students reach the bar.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Now, isn't it

          6  accurate to say CUNY has admitted that there are

          7  some high rates of failure in the pre-algebra, and

          8  the elementary algebra?

          9                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

         10  Yes. Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: All right. So, if

         12  there's high rates of failure in that, see, I don't

         13  want to see standards raised on something that there

         14  is already failure in. So, you have to raise

         15  instruction and curricula material and support

         16  services, not just standards. So, if you're going to

         17  tell people to rise to a certain standard and you're

         18  already failing in pre-algebra and elementary

         19  algebra, so if some of that is already failing, I

         20  don't see how raising standards helps some area

         21  where you're failing.

         22                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: We

         23  have put --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: What kind of

         25  changes have you put in place to do something about
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          2  that?

          3                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: We

          4  have put the spotlight on mathematics so that

          5  faculty are redoubling their efforts in class. We

          6  have teaching and learning centers across the

          7  universities that are offering support to students.

          8  We will be providing Summer Immersion assistance in

          9  the January semester to students. All of the numbers

         10  that we're talking about don't take into account any

         11  changed behavior that we expect to happen.

         12                 In 1999, people thought our

         13  enrollment would be decimated because --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: I don't mean to

         15  cut -- yes, I do mean it. I want to stick to the

         16  pre-algebra and the elementary algebra. What is

         17  being done, curricula material, instruction, about

         18  that, other than raising math standards, to improve

         19  that?

         20                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: We

         21  are talking with mathemeticians and with other

         22  faculty who use mathematics in their disciplines,

         23  about ways we can provide additional support.

         24                 I'm going to turn the microphone to

         25  Provost Bragg, who can tell you about a conference
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          2  that --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Before I go to

          4  her and her conference, so your answer to that

          5  question, this is where we're raising standards, the

          6  response to the failure or through your own

          7  admission of the pre-algebra and the elementary

          8  algebra, is that you're talking to other

          9  instructors? Is there anything in place, other than

         10  not a conference and stuff like that?

         11                 DR. BRAGG: I'll answer it on behalf

         12  of BMCC, but I know my colleagues in the community

         13  college, I think I could speak for them as well,

         14  because I'm sure they're doing pretty much the same

         15  thing.

         16                 We all have Immersions, as the

         17  Executive Vice Chancellor has stated. BMCC has

         18  Winter Immersion and Summer Immersion. We have both.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: How long have you

         20  had it?

         21                 DR. BRAGG: We have had it -- how long

         22  have I been at BMCC? Twenty-five years.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Right. So, you've

         24  had the Immersion, and we still have some failure in

         25  pre-albegra.
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          2                 DR. BRAGG: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: So, I'm trying to

          4  find out --

          5                 DR. BRAGG: Let me explain, please.

          6  Because 25 years ago students coming out of the

          7  public school were slightly different from the ones

          8  we get now. So, what has BMCC done differently?

          9                 We have a project called Project

         10  Advance, where we allow students, according to the

         11  CUNY rules, you can re-test them after a certain

         12  period of time, so we put them in this Immersion,

         13  which is separate from the Immersion you just heard

         14  about, it's called Project Advance, and we put them

         15  in there with faculty who worked with them

         16  one-on-one in subgroups.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: This is a new

         18  program?

         19                 DR. BRAGG: This is maybe about eight,

         20  nine years old.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Right. And with

         22  all of that, there is still some pre-algebra

         23  failures.

         24                 DR. BRAGG: Let me just say to you --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: The reason why
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          2  I'm cutting you, because I want to get my colleagues

          3  in and I know they have to go.

          4                 DR. BRAGG: Let me say to you --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: The only thing

          6  I'm saying to you, I want to know if there is

          7  something new. Not something that's been here for

          8  eight years.

          9                 DR. BRAGG: I can tell you what we're

         10  currently doing.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: The new thing

         12  that's happening is new standards.

         13                 DR. BRAGG: No.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Hold it.

         15                 DR. BRAGG: Let me tell you what we're

         16  currently doing.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Hold it. That's

         18  what's new right now.

         19                 DR. BRAGG: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: You raised the

         21  standards. So, I want to find out what is new, what

         22  is going to be raised new with the standards on the

         23  instructions and on other ideas? Because I don't

         24  think it's fair to students to raise standards

         25  without raising the quality of education along with
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          2  it.

          3                 DR. BRAGG: Please --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: You're going to

          5  get a chance to talk, I promise. I know I'm cutting

          6  you.

          7                 DR. BRAGG: No, that's okay.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: But I don't think

          9  it's fair to students to raise standards and keep

         10  the same programs that you've had that may not have

         11  worked in pre-algebra and certain other things. I

         12  think you have to raise the floor along with the

         13  bar.

         14                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: We

         15  agree with you. And what is different now is the

         16  spotlight is on mathematics and that is new, and so

         17  we are establishing supplemental instructional

         18  opportunities for students who will not only take

         19  mathematics courses, but will have academic support

         20  services connected to the very courses that they're

         21  taking.

         22                 So, we're working with faculty

         23  through our general education curriculum. We're

         24  working with faculty to create supplemental

         25  instruction so that students not only have the
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          2  benefit of what's happening in class, but also an

          3  additional hour attached to the class so that they

          4  can have more practice. We're encouraging students

          5  to work together in groups so that they can

          6  reinforce one another's knowledge about this.

          7                 DR. BRAGG: At BMCC we have

          8  supplements --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: The students will

         10  have to take the COMPASS test this fall, right?

         11                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

         12  Depending on how --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Right. If they

         14  don't do the SAT -- right.

         15                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

         16  Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: And this fall the

         18  increase --

         19                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: No.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: It will not go in

         21  until '09 you're saying?

         22                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: The

         23  increase goes into effect for the spring of 2009

         24  population.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Right. So, the
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          2  tests that they have not been doing well on, you're

          3  saying, the algebra, pre-algebra and others, they'll

          4  have to take that this fall. If they don't meet the

          5  SAT or the Regents.

          6                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

          7  They will take that. However, we will have a

          8  redesigned Summer Immersion Program so that students

          9  --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: I'm concerned

         11  about the community college students right now this

         12  fall. I'm really concerned about that, what could

         13  happen for the community college students this fall?

         14                 DR. BRAGG: We have in place this fall

         15  a supplemental instruction program where we have

         16  tutors, or supplemental instructors is what they're

         17  called, but they're tutors who are in the classroom

         18  during the time in which the faculty is teaching and

         19  also when the students go to tutoring, they're

         20  seeing the same person who sits in the classroom.

         21  And the value of that is obvious because now you're

         22  going to a tutor who knows exactly what your

         23  professor did in class, and you're not learning two

         24  different methods, which often confuse the student.

         25                 When you're learning algebra, which
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          2  is a language, and one professor decides to solve

          3  the equation one way, because there's more than one

          4  way to solve the equation, and then you go to a

          5  tutor who shows you another way, they're confused.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: They're confused.

          7                 DR. BRAGG: So --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Is that CUNY-wide

          9  or is that BMCC?

         10                 DR. BRAGG: There are several schools

         11  within CUNY.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Several?

         13                 DR. BRAGG: I can't tell you. I can

         14  only speak for BMCC.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: That's why I'm

         16  saying, you know, I appreciate it but --

         17                 DR. BRAGG: But I do know, Councilman

         18  Barron, that several of my colleagues in the

         19  community college have supplemental instruction.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: How much is

         21  several? What number?

         22                 DR. BRAGG: I don't want to speak

         23  directly for them, but --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Okay. All right.

         25                 DR. BRAGG: But I do know.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Council Member

          3  Martinez, and then Council Member Seabrook.

          4                 Because I'm trying to get a CUNY-wide

          5  picture of what's going on.

          6                 DR. BRAGG: I could tell you that I

          7  would be surprised if not all of them have it, but I

          8  do know three who do.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: All right.

         10                 DR. BRAGG: Four with BMCC.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chair.

         13                 You know, I've applauded and endorsed

         14  many of the initiatives that the Chancellor has put

         15  forward, however, this is one that I absolutely do

         16  not agree with, and it is one that is extremely

         17  alarming and concerning to me.

         18                 You know, open admission to me when I

         19  was in CUNY meant that I would go into an

         20  institution and if I wanted to be an engineer, I

         21  would go to City College and I'll strive to better

         22  myself in whatever deficiencies I had coming out of

         23  the high school system, the public high school

         24  system. If I wanted to go into business, I would go

         25  into Baruch College and strive to do the very best I
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          2  can to meet whatever standards or deficiencies that

          3  I have.

          4                 However, what this proposal means to

          5  me is not open admission. This is the beginning of

          6  the end of open admission at the City University.

          7  This is selective admission.

          8                 The University is telling our

          9  students where they could go to get a degree and

         10  what type of degree they could get. That's not open

         11  admission. And you know, it's concerning, extremely

         12  concerning to me, and not part of this hearing, but,

         13  you know, having a conversation just a few days ago

         14  that the University is also moving towards having

         15  different tuitions, depending on what university and

         16  what degrees. And now I'm listening from the word of

         17  mouth from the University officials that our

         18  students, mainly minorities, are going to be told

         19  where they could get their degree and what type of

         20  degree they could get. That's what this means to me

         21  here.

         22                 And we could talk about numbers, we

         23  could talk about statistics, the bottom line is the

         24  bottom line. The bottom line is the bottom line,

         25  because being a CUNY graduate, I will point out to
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          2  you hundreds and thousands of professionals, both in

          3  the private and public field, that did have

          4  deficiencies, that did have to go and take extra

          5  curriculum courses because they didn't meet the

          6  standards when they first went into the University.

          7  But they took those courses, they passed the exams

          8  and they moved on.

          9                 And today, can you tell me that that

         10  individual cannot be an engineer, or that individual

         11  cannot be a professional in business? No. So, the

         12  doors are being shut, and I will say this

         13  officially, and I will talk about it over and over

         14  again, this is the beginning of the end of public

         15  admission at the City University as we know it.

         16  That's what this means right here. And you could

         17  come up with the different universities that are

         18  saying how well it's working, how prepared we're

         19  getting, the bottom line is we're starting to shut

         20  the doors on our students, and that's how I see it,

         21  that's what it looks like. If it looks like a bomb

         22  and it smells like a bomb, run, it's a bomb.

         23                 And then what's disturbing to me is

         24  that, you know, we continue to use the statistics

         25  for our benefit when we speak about the enrollment
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          2  in CUNY, unlike any other city university and any

          3  other state, or in the nation, continues to

          4  increase. You also state that you're finding that

          5  more students, more students are coming into the

          6  system after the changes meeting standards. However,

          7  we turn around and we're changing the standards.

          8  When more students coming from the high school,

          9  according to your testimony, are starting to meet

         10  standards, are passing the exams, are not going --

         11  and are taking advantage of the preparatory programs

         12  and courses, and we turn around and we change the

         13  standards, and it's not by coincidence. It's not by

         14  coincidence. I mean, if you tell me that degrees

         15  that I could get at Baruch, the specialities at

         16  Baruch are not the specialties at John Jay. If I

         17  want to be an engineer, I'm not going to go to John

         18  Jay. I'm going to go to City College.

         19                 So, this has to do with degree. This

         20  has to do with income. This has to do with the

         21  potential of an individual. So, if you want to be an

         22  engineer, now you have to score higher. If you want

         23  to be a business person, you have to score higher.

         24  Next thing we're going to know, Mr. Chairman, if you

         25  want to do any one of these things, you've got to
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          2  pay more. That's what we're going to be hearing.

          3                 Now, you mentioned that you sent out

          4  a letter to the University President, but I don't

          5  know if I skipped this part of your testimony, was

          6  this ever approved by the Board of Trustees, this

          7  system, this new standards?

          8                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: Did

          9  you ask if it had approved? I didn't hear.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Did you

         11  mention that already you sent out a letter, it's

         12  going to be implemented?

         13                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

         14  Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Was this

         16  approved by the Board of Trustees at CUNY?

         17                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: We

         18  have asked the colleges to speak with their

         19  governments groups, to speak with their faculty and

         20  to come back to us with their view of what the

         21  standard should be based on their mission, their

         22  students, their history, their specialities. So,

         23  nothing has gone to the Board because this has not

         24  been made into policy. These are recommendations to

         25  the campuses. The campuses are now engaged in
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          2  discussions with their constituents and will come

          3  back to us in mid-November, end of November, with a

          4  definitive view from the campus.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But

          6  ultimately does the Board of Trustees have to

          7  approve these standards, these new standards?

          8                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: We

          9  will work with the Board of Trustees.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: No, but my

         11  question is, does the Board have to approve the new

         12  standards?

         13                 In other words, CUNY to me is CUNY

         14  all around, so I don't see how we're going to have

         15  one system with two sets of standards.

         16                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

         17  These are not Board-required actions.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But you're

         19  changing the system.

         20                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: No,

         21  what we're doing --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Isn't the

         23  Board of Trustees the governing body of CUNY?

         24                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: Let

         25  me step back, if I might, Councilman.
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          2                 You suggested earlier that we were

          3  eliminating open admissions at City University. Open

          4  admissions does not exist at City University

          5  campuses. There are standards at all of the

          6  baccalaureate programs across the University. The

          7  open admission system only exists at community

          8  colleges.

          9                 And I also want to say that in order

         10  for a student to be successful in science, or

         11  engineering or business for that matter, they must

         12  have a high level of mathematical ability and

         13  training.

         14                 City College requires, you know,

         15  calculus and beyond for engineering. Baruch, and

         16  Baruch has 60 percent of its population

         17  under-represented minorities, Baruch requires

         18  calculus --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: No one

         20  disagrees with that. I need to stop you there. No

         21  one disagrees with that. But under the system that

         22  we have right now, if a student does not have that

         23  standard, he will go to a community college, right?

         24                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: And

         25  let me just say that --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: No, no. I

          3  just need simple answers. If a student does not meet

          4  those standards right now and he wants to go to City

          5  College but he doesn't have the numbers in math,

          6  does he got to a community college?

          7                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: He

          8  could go to BMCC and like the other transfer

          9  students that went from BMCC and the City College

         10  Engineering Program, who have done well, and have

         11  graduated, that is the pathway.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Right.

         13  That's where I want to go. So, I don't have the

         14  standards. I want to go to City College. I'm

         15  determined I want to be an engineer, I need to meet

         16  these standards. I got to Manhattan Community

         17  College, I better myself, pass the exam, under the

         18  current standards, then I move on to City College,

         19  correct?

         20                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

         21  Correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Then why are

         23  we setting different sets of standards, in terms of

         24  bringing up the numbers in order to pass the exam?

         25  It was what, 400? I have it right here. The numbers
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          2  you gave us.

          3                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

          4  Four-hundred and eighty and it's being changed to --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: To 500,

          6  correct?

          7                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

          8  Five-hundred or 510.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: To 510. So,

         10  what's wrong with that system? And why do we have

         11  two sets of standards in one system?

         12                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: We

         13  have a number of different systems within CUNY. We

         14  have community colleges, we have comprehensive

         15  colleges, and we have baccalaureate campuses. Within

         16  the baccalaureate campuses, there are different

         17  kinds of students, so no one system really exists.

         18  It's a compilation of different systems that is

         19  connected to the different missions of every campus.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But that's a

         21  system of separatism. You're separating the

         22  universities that have the most potential -- if I

         23  graduate with a business degree from Baruch -- and

         24  believe me, I've received calls from foreign

         25  students that I thought were calling me because they
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          2  wanted to go to NYU, but they want to go to Baruch,

          3  City College. But you're saying that those

          4  universities within CUNY that have the potential or

          5  one becomes more marketable with that degree, are

          6  now standards are higher. Those where you just want

          7  to be a public servant, like John Jay College,

          8  Correction, Police, Public Administration and so

          9  forth, the standards are not the same.

         10                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

         11  What we're saying is that --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: No, I have a

         13  problem understanding that.

         14                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

         15  What we're saying is that different colleges have

         16  different kinds of academic programs.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Different

         18  degrees.

         19                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: Not

         20  degrees. Well, community colleges have different

         21  degrees than baccalaureate campuses, but even within

         22  a sector, within a sector I'm saying that Baruch has

         23  a concentration of business courses, as you suggest.

         24  And City College has a concentration of architecture

         25  and engineering, as you suggest. And in order to be
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          2  successful in those programs, you need a high level

          3  of mathematical training. And it is important just

          4  to reiterate here what we have been doing at City

          5  University, which is deeply connecting our

          6  baccalaureate campuses with our community colleges.

          7                 So, for example, we created a teacher

          8  academy at the baccalaureate campuses that would

          9  recruit and train math and science teachers for

         10  middle and high schools in New York City.

         11                 We have now extended that to the

         12  community colleges so that we can have partnerships

         13  with the community colleges into the teacher

         14  academy.

         15                 We have done that with Baruch. We

         16  have created agreements with the community colleges

         17  and indeed with a few of the comprehensive colleges

         18  as well and Baruch, so that students who perform at

         19  a certain level, with have guaranteed admission into

         20  the Zicklan School of Business (phonetic). John Jay

         21  is also doing this in its forensic science and its

         22  criminal justice programs. So, we are creating

         23  pathways for students and have done so so that

         24  students who take a certain curriculum and reach a

         25  certain grade point average have guaranteed
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          2  admission into those programs.

          3                 This is what a unified integrated

          4  university should be doing, and in our case is

          5  doing.

          6                 MR. CORPUS: Just one small point on

          7  --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Before you move

          9  to that, I'll let you do that, I just want to get a

         10  clarification for my colleague. When he asked does

         11  this have to go to the Board, and you said, no, that

         12  you can make some of these changes, then you told us

         13  that the changes will not happen til '09, spring of

         14  '09, but isn't it true that the Associate program,

         15  the exit testing that will go from 27 to 30 is going

         16  to happen?

         17                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

         18  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: So, that's not

         20  something that's going to wait. That's what I was

         21  asking about before, you said there was no changes

         22  in that, remember?

         23                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: I

         24  thought you were referring to the higher standards

         25  of SATs.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Well, the

          3  standards are going up for the Associate Programs as

          4  we speak.

          5                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

          6  Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: And this is not

          8  something we had hearings about and nothing is

          9  happening right now.

         10                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

         11  That's happening. And --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: All right. Okay.

         13  Okay. I'm just saying that increase, that is going

         14  up now as of fall. Just to let you know, that they

         15  will have to take some of these tests right now, you

         16  know, before we flesh out all of this stuff that

         17  we're talking about, to see how we can improve and

         18  do better.

         19                 And then the other point that he's

         20  making about, I think you're calling them "premiere

         21  colleges" now. It's almost coming to like top tier

         22  colleges, almost coming like we're going in an

         23  elitist system now.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Which is my

         25  point.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: That's what my

          3  colleague's point is, that we have these top tier

          4  colleges now, and then the standards are going to go

          5  up to get into these top tiers. It's kind of a

          6  classist, elitist kind of thing.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Then you

          8  need to pay more.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: That's what my

         10  colleagues are talking about, and that's what we're

         11  concerned about here. But go ahead.

         12                 MR. CORPUS: You had asked what's new.

         13  That's an important question. Council Member

         14  Martinez mentions pipeline, talking about what can I

         15  do to be an engineer? Well, I know at Hostos

         16  Community College, it created an articulation

         17  agreement in electrical engineering. So, in the

         18  past, maybe access wasn't as clear and as

         19  accessible, but that's something new that the

         20  faculty from Hostos connected with the faculty at

         21  City College and built where otherwise students

         22  would not have otherwise been able to have that kind

         23  of pipeline. Those are the programs and the things

         24  that we're doing. We have new articulation

         25  agreements with Baruch from the community colleges.
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          2  The tests existed, the tests still exist. There are

          3  more programs, supplemental instruction and other

          4  ways to help students pass those tests with more

          5  rigor.

          6                 I think there is more access, quite

          7  frankly.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: And quite

          9  frankly, I think that there are greater implication

         10  to what's starting here at CUNY, in terms of

         11  ensuring that we all have an opportunity to access

         12  what we call our top tier universities, such as the

         13  ones that are not top tier universities, and that's

         14  my greater concern.

         15                 I mean, we could always have

         16  different programs that were similar at the

         17  community colleges similar to the senior colleges,

         18  but if I don't have the same assets, and that's not

         19  the issue we're debating now, which I'm sure

         20  hopefully if Council Member Barron gets his way,

         21  we're here another four years, we'll be debating

         22  this in another four years, the issue of university,

         23  all university within the CUNY system having the

         24  same standards and I would say the same tuition.

         25  That's my fear.
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          2                 If my degree is more marketable from

          3  Hunter than it is from John Jay, I think I'm going

          4  to have to pay more to go to Hunter. And, you know,

          5  the same is true when we start looking at the

          6  standards and the changes.

          7                 I mean, and Mr. Chair, this is

          8  something we may want to look at, too, in terms of

          9  the implementation, the full implementation of these

         10  standards, and are these standards that need to go

         11  before a governing body? And do we need also to

         12  engage also some of our colleagues in the State in

         13  this discussion?

         14                 I'm extremely concerned of the fact

         15  that we have universities that we know within CUNY

         16  that are more marketable for one to graduate from

         17  than those that are not, you know, already changing

         18  the standards and limiting the amount of students

         19  that are going to get in there in the first place.

         20                 And I understand that we may have

         21  different support services, and we've had hearings,

         22  Mr. Chairman, on the kind of support services, and

         23  what we're lacking in support services within the

         24  University, so it's not your greatest support

         25  services, that needs help also, to get these
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          2  students back into mainstream senior colleges.

          3                 I will ask the Counsel to the

          4  Committee and yourself if we could start looking at

          5  what needs to happen before this is fully

          6  implemented.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Absolutely.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Thank you.

         11                 DR. BRAGG: Mr. Chairman?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Yes.

         13                 DR. BRAGG: I just want to say that

         14  the path for thousands of students in my 25 years,

         15  26 years at BMCC, thousands and thousands of

         16  students, have been by the way of the community

         17  college. The program that Ben spoke of, also BMCC

         18  has that program. The students come to us

         19  underprepared, and we accept that. They come to us

         20  out of the public schools, not able to sometimes

         21  read or write and do mathematics. And we accept

         22  that. But yet, instead, when we take them in, we

         23  know that we have the job of bringing them up to

         24  where they need to be in order to succeed, and to

         25  transfer within the four-year colleges and sometimes

                                                            73

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  they transfer out of CUNY, they go many other

          3  places.

          4                 So, I want us to understand that,

          5  that the University is still open. It's open by way

          6  of the community colleges as it always has been. And

          7  also want us to understand one other thing: the

          8  level of mathematics differ, depending on your

          9  field, and I think all of us recognize that.

         10                 If you are going to go in political

         11  science, you do not take the same mathematics as

         12  someone who is going into engineering. If you're

         13  going into history, you do not take --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: We know that.

         15                 DR. BRAGG: I know you understand. So,

         16  the point I'm making --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: All right. Make

         18  your point with the --

         19                 DR. BRAGG: No. But --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: This is not the

         21  --

         22                 DR. BRAGG: I want to make the --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: No, hold it. Hold

         24  it.

         25                 DR. BRAGG: Okay.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: That's kind of

          3  condescending.

          4                 DR. BRAGG: I don't mean it to be

          5  condescending.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Oh, you don't

          7  mean it to be, but it's coming off like that.

          8                 DR. BRAGG: I'm sorry.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: You know we know

         10  that we don't need math for history, and we

         11  understand all of that, and we're not disagreeing

         12  that there is some success and there is a pathway.

         13                 We're trying to get at what Miguel

         14  and others are saying, we want to stop the elitist

         15  tier building of the system. Nothing you're saying

         16  speaks to that.

         17                 DR. BRAGG: Okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: The issue that

         19  we're concerned about is the standards are not used

         20  to form an elitist top tier college that students

         21  will have more difficulty getting into, that we want

         22  it to remain as equitable, equal access to all

         23  colleges, and sometimes it takes students three,

         24  four -- it took me 3,000 years to get out of this

         25  two-year college. And sometimes it takes students
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          2  three, four, five years to get out of a two-year

          3  college and transfer over to the four-year college,

          4  another two, three, four, five because they're

          5  working and all of that stuff. It's better to just

          6  get right into that four-year program and work it

          7  through and get through.

          8                 So, that's what we're talking about.

          9  So, if you didn't mean to, but it sounds

         10  condescending. It really does.

         11                 DR. BRAGG: I didn't mean it to be

         12  condescending.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: I know you

         14  didn't, because I know you.

         15                 DR. BRAGG: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: And I know you

         17  don't mean that, but that's how it's coming off,

         18  because we know those things that you just said.

         19  Those are not the issues.

         20                 DR. BRAGG: No. But I just wanted to

         21  say the students do have that opportunity.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: We know that.

         23                 DR. BRAGG: Okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: We know that.

         25  Believe me. But that's not the issue. We do know
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          2  that.

          3                 The issue is, what are these

          4  standards doing? Is it building an elitist tier of

          5  colleges, and is it going to block access to some

          6  students who are quite capable of dealing with that

          7  baccalaureate program, but the standards are

          8  stopping them more than their capability and

          9  abilities are.

         10                 So, I'm going to let Council Member

         11  Seabrook, who has been very patient.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you.

         13  Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. And just a point

         14  of information. Harvard has remediation programs as

         15  well. So, just putting that out there as we talk

         16  about the question of remediation. But there is some

         17  concerns that I have about this, and I think we

         18  truly have to call a time out and have some

         19  discussion.

         20                 I think I got in a little late, but

         21  just glimpsing through this, and I think the

         22  Chairman raised the issue about the numbers, the

         23  percentages of African-Americans into the major

         24  colleges had decreased, and the colleges in which

         25  they had decreased were basically the colleges that
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          2  we're now projecting as the top tier.

          3                 I'm old enough and schooled enough to

          4  know that these are the same colleges that we were

          5  so under-represented in that we were fighting to

          6  talk about open admission, although I was in school

          7  before open admission, but these were the colleges

          8  that we were not in. And I always had a tremendous

          9  concern because of the level of discrimination.

         10                 Historically, and I think that people

         11  need to understand that, because sometimes I think

         12  we get a sense of being dosed with a false sense of

         13  history without having all of the ingredients of

         14  history. Because we're trying to capture what City

         15  College was without understanding what City College

         16  was. The level of racism in this country, the level

         17  of anti-Semitism forced everybody to be in City

         18  College when they couldn't go to the Harvards, the

         19  Yales and other places. So, you had everybody packed

         20  in from the A students to the D students, and the

         21  dynamics that was here because the City gave a

         22  commitment to say that with all of the racism,

         23  anti-Semitism in America, that we were going to have

         24  an institution that provided for people to have the

         25  opportunity to go, and for those who were not a part
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          2  or even classified as white at a time, but had the

          3  opportunity to excel because they had access to.

          4                 Here we're now going 40 years and we

          5  had the argument about the lack of minorities in

          6  these colleges. And go back and read the papers. The

          7  percentages of African-Americans and Latinos in

          8  these same colleges was an argument in which we had.

          9  And now we're going back and when we see the New

         10  York Times report that in these same colleges the

         11  numbers decreasing for African-Americans in these

         12  same colleges. So, historically, the more things

         13  change, the more they remain the same.

         14                 Then we have to look, and we have to

         15  be very careful. It may not be a conscious effort,

         16  but sometimes what we see is real and is not an

         17  illusion, when we look at where these colleges are

         18  located, and what we're trying to project, we're not

         19  in competition to get the NYU students, you ain't

         20  getting them, what we're talking about is this is a

         21  university system that says that this is opportunity

         22  here. This is opportunity. And we know that if a

         23  person is not capable, equipped, that we're not

         24  putting them into this high mathematical college,

         25  we're not talking about that. But there is a concern
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          2  that I have when those numbers that we know the

          3  eligible students, and they all aren't going to

          4  Arizona either, because I think that they want to be

          5  here in New York, so they ain't going to Arizona,

          6  there has to be an effort that says that these

          7  numbers should never go down in the City as

          8  predominantly minority. And when you look, and I'm

          9  not talking about, I'm talking about who the

         10  government has classified as minority, not who you

         11  might desire, and so we have to be very concerned

         12  about that.

         13                 And, so, when we look at what the

         14  mission, and we have to be very, very careful,

         15  because there is a movement of gentrification that

         16  just don't happen with housing, and we need to be

         17  very careful of what we do, because the money is in

         18  a segregated society. I went to a segregated school,

         19  but I had people who cared about me, but I didn't

         20  know that money followed white kids. And that's what

         21  we have to be very careful, when those numbers shift

         22  and we start -- because when we start looking at

         23  these colleges that we put on this top tier, and we

         24  start looking at the dynamics of the ethnic

         25  composition, and then the money start following
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          2  them, that's what we have to worry about. It was

          3  never about being segregated, integrated, it was the

          4  monies that were spent. And that's a concern that we

          5  must have because you can develop this and easily

          6  fall and get lulled into it. Because there is a

          7  question that I raise, and you might not have the

          8  figures now, but how many of those students are the

          9  loan scholars in these four colleges, and I want to

         10  know the percentages of those and where and the

         11  numbers in these colleges.

         12                 But what I'm saying is that this is

         13  about how do we help these people stay in these

         14  four-year colleges if Harvard has remediation? And

         15  so the level, and we're not asking you to put

         16  anybody anyplace that they don't meet the

         17  qualifications, but I am certain that there are

         18  those, there are those who we have in these schools,

         19  because the numbers shouldn't go down. They should

         20  be going up. And we can blame -- the public school

         21  has its way, but open admissions the majority of

         22  kids didn't come from public schools, they came from

         23  Catholic schools, who could go into those other

         24  places and pay those tuitions when they had open

         25  enrollment. The St. Francis and all these other
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          2  places. We must understand the historical dynamics

          3  of how they became a part of this institution. And

          4  we understand the faults in the public school

          5  system, but we also understand that there is an

          6  obligation and a duty, a duty that we have that

          7  these numbers should never go down in a City that's

          8  predominantly minority, and that we're looking at

          9  this assault on these African-American males, that

         10  that is a commitment that has to be, because you

         11  could end up with some Lily White schools here, and

         12  that's a danger, and we could all do it on

         13  standards. And, so, we have to be very careful and

         14  cognizant of what we're doing here. And no one loves

         15  CUNY better than me. I went to its law school, Mr.

         16  Chair, and graduated from there, so I am a CUNY

         17  person. But I also understand that we have to be

         18  very careful of losing sight of this mission and

         19  this duty and this responsibility in which we have.

         20  Because we can end up, and I would never want this

         21  to be the University of Mississippi reversed. That's

         22  my concern. Not that you all are, but that's my

         23  concern, that gentrification is not only about

         24  housing. We have to be very careful about this.

         25                 That's what I have to say, Mr. Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Thank you.

          3                 Council Member Brewer.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Chairman.

          6                 I want to just talk about what's

          7  going to happen next. I do happen, I happen to have

          8  the pleasure of representing Hunter Science, and

          9  helped get it started at the Martin Luther King Jr.

         10  High School Campus four years ago, and spoke at the

         11  graduation four years later. It was very exciting.

         12  Primarily of community of color, in fact, I believe

         13  I populated the entire freshmen class with a

         14  desperate call four years ago, "we're opening the

         15  school in your neighborhood, Gale. We have nobody

         16  coming in." And I called all the local middle

         17  schools, particularly those schools that had

         18  children who were challenged in the middle school,

         19  and they all went in and they're all going to

         20  college.

         21                 So, obviously, in the situation where

         22  you have a great principal, I think taking college

         23  courses, this 100 percent almost community of color

         24  is graduating and many of them are going to Hunter.

         25                 I know you talked about College Now,
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          2  so my question is, that's on track, when you go from

          3  a CUNY high school campus school, do most of your

          4  students there go to the community colleges, or do

          5  most of them go to the senior colleges? And what

          6  kind of tests do they take to get in?

          7                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: I'm

          8  not sure I understand your question.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Well, what I'm

         10  saying is you have a success with some of these high

         11  schools that are on your campuses or related to your

         12  campuses. So, my question is, that's a good pipeline

         13  for the community of color, I would assume, to go to

         14  CUNY. So, I'm wondering, you mentioned some numbers

         15  in your testimony, I'm wondering if that is a

         16  student body that is well educated, and can pass

         17  tests in order to get into the senior colleges, or

         18  are they going to the community colleges?

         19                 In other words, I'm trying to find

         20  pipelines.

         21                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

         22  They go everywhere.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         24                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

         25  They go everywhere. And many of them don't come to
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          2  CUNY campuses, actually. They want a different

          3  experience. They may want a residential experience.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

          5                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

          6  Hunter College, Hunter Math Science High School is

          7  an aberration, because so many of the graduating

          8  seniors --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Fifty-two

         10  percent.

         11                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: --

         12  Went into --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Hunter.

         14                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:--

         15  Hunter College, and it was a terrific success story.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Do you know

         17  what worked there that could help elsewhere?

         18                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: I

         19  think there was the commitment of the President of

         20  Hunter College that was dogged, that she was

         21  concerned that these students would get the best

         22  education possible at the high school, and then

         23  would simultaneously be taking courses at the

         24  college as well.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: They do.
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          2                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: And

          3  I think you need leadership and I think it's there.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Did they take

          5  --

          6                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: A

          7  great principal, as you said --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Susan is

          9  unbelievable.

         10                 Does one take a test to go from your

         11  program, I guess you would call it College Now, in

         12  order to go into that senior? Or is it because

         13  you've done well in the college courses you can go

         14  in?

         15                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: You

         16  meet the admission standards at Hunter or other

         17  senior colleges.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So, sort of --

         19  this was a unique situation?

         20                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: No,

         21  these students met the criteria. They either had a

         22  480 on the SAT, a 75 on the Regents English and

         23  Math, and so didn't have to take the COMPASS test

         24  because they were admissible by other means.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Other means,
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          2  okay.

          3                 So, that's a model to look at with

          4  that kind of commitment. Just so the Chairman knows,

          5  I believe it's 100 percent of color class, the first

          6  class, because I actually think I did populate the

          7  whole thing.

          8                 So, again, it's more integrated now,

          9  coming down for the next classes. But that was an

         10  example of extraordinary success.

         11                 So, I guess what I'm saying is,

         12  because that would give one the opportunity, my

         13  guess is I couldn't pass the algebra test. That

         14  would be my guess. I could pass the AP English. So,

         15  my question would be how there could be alternatives

         16  that give people the option of doing well in school,

         17  taking courses that have this pipeline. Is that any

         18  place else, this kind of pipeline?

         19                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

         20  Well, many of our affiliated high schools or early

         21  college high schools have a deep commitment with the

         22  University. So, if you take the American History

         23  High School at Lehman College, for example, you will

         24  find Lehman College faculty at the school teaching

         25  at the school. If you look at the Staten Island High
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          2  School, it has an Asia focus, you will find, again,

          3  Staten Island faculty. This kind of collaboration I

          4  think will increase the number of students who will

          5  come to the college because they recognize the

          6  quality --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So, I guess

          8  one of the questions we have is, and I know time is

          9  of the essence here, but I know you are trying very

         10  hard to have more colleges have more relationships,

         11  even though they may not be campus colleges; what

         12  kinds of efforts have been successful in that

         13  regard?

         14                 Because it does seem to me when that

         15  young person takes college courses, and there is

         16  that kind of discipline in the high school, it makes

         17  a huge difference in the ability to go to senior

         18  college.

         19                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: We

         20  are finding that through the Black Male Initiative,

         21  with the pipeline efforts and the mentoring efforts,

         22  that down the road we should see, in fact, a

         23  stronger number of high school students, men of

         24  color, coming into the campuses, students who may

         25  not have elected to come to college. And, so, the
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          2  Black Male Initiative is one way we are trying to

          3  work in this regard.

          4                 College Now is very important, as you

          5  mentioned.

          6                 The other point I want to stress is

          7  the deep discussions we at CUNY Central are engaging

          8  the Department of Education on.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right. It's

         10  tough.

         11                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: But

         12  we are making progress there. And, you know, I'm

         13  sorry that the Councilman left, because I really

         14  believe that we are on the same team here, that we

         15  care as deeply --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: No, we know

         17  that. I don't want to sound like Charles Barron, but

         18  I understand that.

         19                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: No,

         20  no. No. And I mean this --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: It's all right to

         22  sound like me, Gale.

         23                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: I

         24  mean this very, very ingenuously, that I wake up

         25  every morning and know I work in a University that
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          2  changes people's lives.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Absolutely. I

          4  agree with you.

          5                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: And

          6  this is very important.

          7                 And, Councilman, I just want to make

          8  one little clarification, if I might?

          9                 We had nearly 60 percent students of

         10  color in 1999, we have nearly 60 percent students of

         11  color in 2007. So, the percentage --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: No, I said

         13  in reference to those particular colleges.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Let me ask you

         15  another question about over-crowding, because I do

         16  know how much where BMCC, Kings Borough, et cetera,

         17  are doing in terms of the community colleges to get

         18  into the senior colleges or just to go on to be a

         19  successful human being. I have many friends who

         20  teach, et cetera. My question is, because of the

         21  over-crowding, though, because obviously it's a

         22  resource issue, we've had other discussions and

         23  other hearings, the community colleges are really

         24  overcrowded. So, yes, you can get this kind of

         25  support. I help young people personally, so I know
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          2  what goes on, but given the overcrowding situation,

          3  are you really able to provide those kinds of

          4  services? BMCC is such a fabulous place that it is

          5  overcrowded.

          6                 I mean, it's good to have them in

          7  place, but it's hard to make them successful if you

          8  have these huge numbers.

          9                 DR. BRAGG: Well, you are correct,

         10  Councilman Brewer, we are overcrowded. And how do we

         11  manage? In a variety of ways. We're open seven days

         12  a week. Our classes start at 7:00 and end at 10:30.

         13  We have an Uptown campus in Washington Heights, and

         14  we have one in Harlem in the State Office Building.

         15                 So, yes, we're overcrowded, but we

         16  have opened our college and we have stretched our

         17  days, and we are able to serve our 19,000 students.

         18                 Do we need space? Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

         20                 So, in terms of support services that

         21  we talked about, they're obviously open seven days a

         22  week, support services, too.

         23                 DR. BRAGG: Absolutely. Seven days a

         24  week the library is open, computer rooms are open.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And the
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          2  Immersion programs too?

          3                 DR. BRAGG: Immersion program is only

          4  for winter and for summer, but they're open at the

          5  same times.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

          7                 So, can you just, last question, can

          8  you just be specific, for a student who is at a

          9  community college who wants to go to a four-year

         10  college, do you have some percentage, maybe it's in

         11  your material, as to those who go from the community

         12  colleges to the senior colleges, and obviously the

         13  community of color in those percentages?

         14                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

         15  Seventy percent of students with Associate Degrees

         16  from CUNY community colleges transfer to senior

         17  colleges. We are far higher than most systems across

         18  the country. Seventy percent.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. And do

         20  you know how long it takes because of the

         21  challenging overcrowded, no matter how hard you

         22  work, or in terms of getting support in order to do

         23  that? The time frame?

         24                 In other words, it is hard sometimes

         25  because of the overcrowded, even though you're open
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          2  seven days a week to get all the courses sometimes

          3  that you need, and it's not impossible, but it's

          4  difficult.

          5                 In other words, you can do it, if you

          6  want to do it in two years, there's Immersion,

          7  there's enough support to help you do that, be it

          8  English as a Second Language or math, in particular.

          9                 DR. BRAGG: Our programs usually

         10  promote, students take an average of four years.

         11                 We have a program called "Out In Two"

         12  where we work with students who want to do it out in

         13  two years. It's small, but it's a program that we

         14  offer to students. But it takes most of our

         15  students, because also, remember, our students work.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right. I know.

         17  I'm aware of that. The returning students.

         18                 DR. BRAGG: Right.

         19                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: Can

         20  I draw your attention to the Accelerated Study and

         21  Associate Programs, the ASAP program? You may know

         22  about it, Council Member Brewer.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Mm-hmm.

         24                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN: The

         25  Center for Economic Opportunity in the City has
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          2  offered CUNY $19 million over three years to create

          3  a program for 1,000 students who receive mentoring,

          4  advising, job placement, and we're looking at the

          5  ASAP program as a model, and we're hoping and

          6  working very hard, that we will graduate 50 percent

          7  in three years, 75 percent in four years, and we'll

          8  be able to go back to the Mayor's Office and the

          9  Center for Economic Opportunity for additional

         10  resources for an additional --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And these are

         12  for community college students, or college?

         13                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:

         14  Exclusively community college. We have 1,000

         15  students at six community colleges.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, it's a

         17  start. It's a small number, but it's a good start.

         18  It's a small number.

         19                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Well, thank you

         21  very much.

         22                 I want to truly thank all of you for

         23  the presentation, and I want to strongly recommend,

         24  and I'll be recommending this to my colleagues here

         25  in the City Council, to the Speaker, to the Black
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          2  Latino Asian Caucus, that we put a moratorium on the

          3  implementation of these increased standards for the

          4  Fall of '07. I mean, the letters are going out to

          5  the college presidents, you haven't received that

          6  back yet. It may be doing well, some of the

          7  wonderful things that are happening at BMCC maybe

          8  can be standardized across the campuses, so that we

          9  can improve instruction, improve all these other

         10  things and work on programs. I think that what this

         11  hearing has demonstrated to me, that there are some

         12  good things happening at some of the schools, but

         13  the standard across the entire University campuses,

         14  of the entire structure of the entire University, we

         15  should put a moratorium on it. I'm going to call the

         16  Chancellor myself, write him a letter. Just hold up

         17  on it for '07, since so much more has to be

         18  discussed, you've got to get more feedback. We've

         19  got to make sure instruction is happening on all the

         20  campuses. That these issues are raised.

         21                 I think it should be held off and not

         22  happen in '07, and looking at the '09 date, at least

         23  that gives us -- I guess the '09 date would affect

         24  '08 folks admissions.

         25                 EXECUTIVE VICE CHANCELLOR BOTMAN:
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          2  Students who apply to admission in the spring of

          3  '09. So, students who would be applying in the

          4  spring of '09 would fall under the new standards.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Right. So, I

          6  think we should hold it off for now, that would be

          7  my strong recommendation. I would strongly advocate

          8  and organize for that, until we can have more

          9  discussions like this.

         10                 I think this was a very fruitful

         11  discussion. I think it's important for us to go back

         12  and forth with this. As you said, we are all on the

         13  same team, want the same thing. We want to recruit,

         14  retain and graduate. That's what we want. That's the

         15  bottom line. And we want it to be affordable and

         16  accessible. That's the bottom line I think we all

         17  want. And since we are all on the same page for

         18  that, I think a moratorium on the standards for '07

         19  would be in place. It hasn't gone before the Board

         20  and doesn't have to, and since you said it didn't

         21  have to go before the Board to put it on, then you

         22  don't have to go before the Board to take it off,

         23  and let's wait til '09 and discuss it some more.

         24                 But thank you very much for your

         25  presentation.
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          2                 We have just one more panel, so you

          3  won't have to be here long. Just one more panel and

          4  that will conclude our hearing.

          5                 MS. HALM: Professor Sam Anderson,

          6  Professor Bill Crain, Robert Slavin.

          7                 Would you please raise your right

          8  hands.

          9                 Do you swear that the testimony that

         10  you're about to give will be truthful and accurate?

         11                 (Witnesses collectively stated yes.)

         12                 MS. HALM: Please state your names for

         13  the record before you begin.

         14                 PROFESSOR ANDERSON: My name is Sam

         15  Anderson. Brooklyn native. I'd like to thank the

         16  Council members for inviting me here to this

         17  hearing, and to talk about a topic that I have been

         18  immersed in for the past 37 years.

         19                 Let me just say that I, for several

         20  years, have taught at the Center for Worker

         21  Education, both the Queens College and the City

         22  College component of that. Taught math at the Center

         23  for Worker Ed. And for several years was Chair of

         24  the Science and Technology Division, or grouping as

         25  we called it, at the State University of New York at
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          2  Old Westbury, and one of the things that we did

          3  there was to have no pre-algebra courses, to have

          4  everybody come in starting in algebra, and taking

          5  about a year before they go and take calculus. And

          6  it was successful. It was an open enrollment school

          7  at that time and it was successful.

          8                 I'd like to talk about three areas,

          9  break down my presentation into three areas. And let

         10  me just say I wholeheartedly support Councilman

         11  Barron's suggestion of a moratorium on this raising

         12  of the SAT scores to be admitted into CUNY's system.

         13                 I'd like to start off by first

         14  pointing out in a very cursory way, the

         15  fundamentally bogus nature of this Scholastic

         16  Aptitude Test. Or any of these high-stakes

         17  standardized exams, but particularly the Scholastic

         18  Aptitude Test. And then secondly go into some of the

         19  specifics of the already, the record of the already

         20  disastrous nature of imposing these kinds of

         21  standards within the City University system. And

         22  then thirdly, some very, very concrete

         23  recommendations. I won't take too much time on this.

         24  I mean, I could go on for a whole semester on these

         25  things.
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          2                 I'd like to start off by saying that

          3  we're going to look at, to show the bogus nature of

          4  the Scholastic Aptitude Test, we look at in the very

          5  specific sense of the high, the high end, and then

          6  we look at where in reality black students are.

          7  Particularly black students. This also can be

          8  applied to Latino students, where they are in this.

          9                 This is some documentation that was

         10  developed out of the Journal of Blacks in Higher

         11  Education in 2006. Under the Scholastic Aptitude

         12  Scoring system, most non-minority students hoping to

         13  qualify for admission to any of the nation's 25

         14  highest rank universities and 25 highest rank

         15  liberal arts colleges, need to score at least 700 on

         16  each portion of the SAT.

         17                 For admissions to the very highest

         18  ranked brand name schools, such as Princeton or MIT,

         19  applicants need scores of 750 to be considered for

         20  admission. Yet, as we see, only a minute percentage

         21  of black test takers score at these levels.

         22                 And this shows you, when you look at

         23  these scores, you can only come up with two, either

         24  of two conclusions: that black people are

         25  fundamentally by nature incompetent, incapable of
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          2  dealing in mathematics, or that there is something

          3  fundamentally wrong in the way black students are

          4  taught mathematics. Either one. Again, I have both.

          5                 The Scholastic Aptitude racial gap

          6  among high scoring applicants; in 2006, 150,643

          7  African-Americans took the SAT. They made up 10.3

          8  percent of all SAT takers, but only 976

          9  African-American college-bound students scored 700

         10  or above on the math SAT.

         11                 Out of the 150,000 plus, only 700

         12  scored -- I'm sorry, only 976 scored 700 or above.

         13  And only 1,117 scored at least 700 on the verbal

         14  SAT.

         15                 Nationally, more than 95,000 students

         16  of all races scored 700 or above on the math SAT,

         17  95,000 on the national. And nearly 69,000 students

         18  scored 700 on the verbal. Thus, in the top scoring

         19  category of all SAT test takers, blacks made up only

         20  one percent of the students scoring 700 or higher on

         21  the math test, and only 1.6 percent on the students

         22  scoring 700 or higher on the verbal SAT.

         23                 If we eliminate Asians, and other

         24  minorities from the stats and compare just white and

         25  black students, you will find that 5.4 percent of
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          2  all white students, all white SAT test takers,

          3  scored 700 and above, but only 0.74 percent of all

          4  blacks, not even one percent, okay?

          5                 I start there to give you the harsh

          6  reality of the nature of public education and also

          7  private education in the United States. And this is

          8  reflective in New York City.

          9                 Now, where are black students scoring

         10  in math SATs? What is the average? Not 500. It's 425

         11  or thereabouts. Okay? 425. Now, they're talking

         12  about raising the math score to 510. That

         13  automatically widens the gap between black students

         14  and the standard, okay? That automatically, there is

         15  no question about it, automatically that happens,

         16  simultaneously as we are witnessing the rapid

         17  deterioration of New York City public high schools,

         18  in terms of the black student.

         19                 Now, in 1999, under Giuliani, there

         20  was -- in May of 1999, there was a New York City

         21  Council Higher Education Committee hearing, in which

         22  two professors from CUNY grad by the name of David

         23  Lavon, or Lavin, and Elliot Weininger, gave a

         24  presentation. And in that presentation that foretold

         25  what will happen if you raise these standards. And
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          2  I'll just point out just a bit in terms of what they

          3  mentioned.

          4                 They said in 1997, 37 percent of the

          5  entire 1997 freshmen class actually entered senior

          6  colleges in that year. Had the new admissions policy

          7  in '99, had the new admission policy been in effect,

          8  only 20 percent would have entered senior colleges,

          9  and 80 percent would have been placed in community

         10  colleges. Okay? We're talking, this is a

         11  presentation again to the City Council in 1999,

         12  eight years ago. And the situation has not improved

         13  since then. The context in which they're talking

         14  about is very similar today, if not worse.

         15                 Indeed, this dramatic reduction in

         16  the proportion of freshmen entering BA programs

         17  stands in stark contrast to the national picture.

         18  Only 20 percent of CUNY freshmen will enter

         19  baccalaureate studies, compared with 53 percent of

         20  freshmen in the United States. That baccalaureates,

         21  meaning not going into junior colleges, not going

         22  into community colleges, but actually going into the

         23  four-year institutions.

         24                 CUNY has clearly stepped out of the

         25  national mainstream. I maintain that this is the
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          2  case today, 2007, also. And that with this increase

          3  in the math score to 510 and other plans to make it

          4  more difficult to get into the four-year colleges,

          5  that this situation will get worse.

          6                 All groups will be hit hard, but the

          7  effects will fall with special severity on minority

          8  students. Thus, while the new admission regulations

          9  promise to shift almost 30 percent of whites out of

         10  senior institutions into community colleges, more

         11  than half of black, Hispanic and Asian students will

         12  be diverted to the latter. And that is exactly what

         13  happened in the past eight years.

         14                 Lastly on this, the new 1999

         15  admissions policy will likely bring about an even

         16  more dramatic decline, lowering freshmen enrollment

         17  in senior colleges from 37 percent of the entire

         18  class to 20 percent, an overall reduction of 46

         19  percent, and that's what happened.

         20                 Let me just point out, you heard a

         21  lot and there's a lot more in the presentation, let

         22  me just point out some of the recommendations that

         23  can happen, okay? And I think that the City Council

         24  can initiate this?

         25                 1) Rebuild SEEK in all CUNY colleges.
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          2  All. Rebuild that to what it was, let's say in 1970,

          3  to that level, at least that level. Rebuild, re-fund

          4  it, re-staff it, and make it a necessary component

          5  in all, not just the City junior colleges, but all

          6  in the full effect of a teaching staff, and a

          7  counseling staff in a SEEK program. And people can

          8  -- there are documents within the CUNY system, that

          9  you can see what I mean by rebuilding it to the

         10  standards of 1970, everywhere. That's one simple

         11  process that can happen.

         12                 Secondly, admit students based on

         13  high school grades and teacher recommendation to the

         14  CUNY system. Admit students based on high school

         15  grades and teacher recommendation. Notice I didn't

         16  say anything about standardized exams, okay? All I'm

         17  saying is go back to open admissions. Simple as

         18  that.

         19                 Also, make all math courses in CUNY

         20  credit bearing. All math courses in CUNY credit

         21  bearing. Why stigmatize a student for knowledge that

         22  he or she never got?

         23                 When we were at Old Westbury, we said

         24  we will not have any remedial courses, because

         25  that's assuming that the student failed to get
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          2  something. And in essence the student was not in a

          3  position to get anything because of the level of

          4  mis-education. So, why do that? We called it

          5  academic enhancement program, okay?

          6                 So, credit bearing. It may mean that

          7  psychologically for the student, they're officially

          8  in college if they're going to get two credits or

          9  three credits for a course that they're taking in

         10  college. It makes a big difference in their pursuit

         11  of education.

         12                 If they're sitting in a class for

         13  three semesters with no credit, four semesters with

         14  no credit, that's psychologically damaging.

         15                 The other thing is, have no

         16  pre-algebra. Get rid of pre-algebra, and you

         17  introduce a sequence of algebra precalculus and then

         18  a one-year sequence of algebra precalculus. Get rid

         19  of pre-algebra.

         20                 I have experience, successful

         21  experience in this from Old Westbury, from Rutgers

         22  University, and other places, and I know other

         23  people who have this, too.

         24                 Another thing is, create a bridge

         25  math program in all non-specialized high schools,
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          2  where either students go to a college for class, or

          3  a college professor teaches at the school. Build

          4  that into, in other words, we force the Board of

          5  Education to look at itself as K through 16. And we

          6  incorporate, we structure courses in math,

          7  particularly in math, that in high schools,

          8  non-specialized high schools, I'm not talking about

          9  Townsend, Stuyvesant, I'm talking about Brandeis and

         10  other places where these courses would be infused

         11  and those students would go to the campus and/or

         12  University Professors attend those high schools.

         13                 The last thing I want to point out is

         14  how we can get this going, how we can start this

         15  math revamping, develop and moving forward, what I

         16  would call a math enhancement program for all of

         17  CUNY.

         18                 And that is that for the City

         19  Council, in collaboration with the CUNY system, hold

         20  a math education summit, and invite, among others,

         21  these specific people I'm going to mention: Abdula

         22  Laheem Shabaz. Professor Abdula Laheem Shabaz, not

         23  at Grambling University. Precisely because he is the

         24  professor that has produced 50 percent of all

         25  African-American PhDs in math in the United States.
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          2  He must be doing something right, okay? Bob Moses of

          3  the Algebra Project, because he has developed a very

          4  successful program in which we tried to enhance in

          5  1993/'94 here in New York City in the Board of Ed. I

          6  was on that committee, on that New York Algebra

          7  Project Committee - to no avail. But he is still

          8  open. Bob is still open to come here and help us

          9  with the Algebra Project. The Algebra Project is

         10  successful in the State of Mississippi, in

         11  Baltimore, in Boston it is successful, okay? It has

         12  a track record, all right? And their position is,

         13  their position is they know when they have a

         14  successful student when that student graduates from

         15  college. It's not about tests. It's about the

         16  long-term thing.

         17                 Professor Arthur Powell, one of my

         18  former colleagues, at Rutgers University, who spent

         19  a number of years working in this area of developing

         20  math curricula and teachers and teaching teachers

         21  how to deal with black students, Latino students and

         22  mathematics, and he's been very successful on this,

         23  both here and in the United States and in Brazil and

         24  in Muslim Beak (phonetic), but particularly here in

         25  the U.S. Aiesha Sales, who is a former high school
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          2  teacher here at A. Phillip Randolf, who is very

          3  successful in getting some 75 to 80 percent of her

          4  students into college and doing excellent in math.

          5  She taught AP calculus at A. Phillip Randolf and

          6  retired, living in Peekskill New York. She retired

          7  from the Peekskill High School system. And Quannae

          8  Andrews, who is a young science high school teacher,

          9  math/science high school teacher, right here in New

         10  York City.

         11                 Now, this is my recommendation. We

         12  get these people together, and I'll have a two- or

         13  three-day summit with concrete recommendations in

         14  reference to the other things that I have mentioned,

         15  and I think we will be on the right path to

         16  rejuvenate the City University system as an open

         17  enrollment place.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Well, I want to

         19  thank you very much for those recommendations, for

         20  your analysis. I do want to say, Dr. Sam Anderson is

         21  very humble, but he has a Ph.D in mathematics. He is

         22  an excellent math teacher. I think it would be

         23  incumbent upon CUNY to sit down with him and work

         24  these things out.

         25                 We're certainly going to take up on
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          2  those excellent suggestions, and this is just the

          3  kind of things we like to have at these kind of

          4  hearings.

          5                 Particularly the summit is easy, it's

          6  doable. There's enough resources for CUNY and all of

          7  us to get together and make that happen, and out of

          8  that can come recommendations on how to deal with

          9  this.

         10                 But thank you very much for your

         11  presentation.

         12                 PROFESSOR ANDERSON: Just one other

         13  thing. In terms of the summit, the other person I

         14  think we should invite is Joseph Reed, Dr. Joseph

         15  Reed of the National Science Foundation. Not just

         16  because he was a classmate of mine at Lincoln, he's

         17  a brilliant chemist, but he is on top of the money,

         18  okay? From the NSF, to get a lot of these things off

         19  the road.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Well, all of your

         21  recommendations will be seriously considered. I'm

         22  certain we will be able to implement some of them.

         23                 PROFESSOR CRAIN: Good afternoon. I'm

         24  Bill Crain, Professor of Psychology at the City

         25  College of New York, soon to become a top-tier
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          2  college, one of the five top-tier colleges. I am

          3  adamantly opposed to this plan. The plan is

          4  apparently not going to the Board of Trustees for

          5  approval, which strikes me as amazing. You're

          6  tiering the whole structure of the City University,

          7  but apparently the CUNY Administration doesn't feel

          8  the need to send it to the Trustees. The Trustees

          9  would approve it anyway, but at least that gives us

         10  a public forum. So, the lack of a public forum,

         11  which is probably the reason for not sending it to

         12  the Trustees, makes your hearings, Chairman Barron,

         13  especially needed. Makes them vital, because we have

         14  very few forums in which to discuss the whole

         15  overall plan.

         16                 As has been said, the Chancellor

         17  plans to raise the cutoff scores in the math SAT and

         18  other tests for admission to the senior colleges.

         19  The plan appeals to many people. They believe, among

         20  other things, higher test scores will improve CUNY's

         21  image. A lot of my friends and colleagues say it's

         22  going to improve our image. Image is everything. And

         23  after all, SATs are part of the rankings in U.S.

         24  News and World Report. Sometimes I think that the

         25  purpose of our institution is to increase its
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          2  rankings in U.S. News and World Report, and so

          3  therefore the SATs becomes a good factor in that.

          4  But there are more important issues at stake, and

          5  they concern social justice.

          6                 A just society would give everyone an

          7  equal opportunity for an excellent education, but

          8  this is not how our society works. Some children are

          9  born into affluent families and receive an excellent

         10  preparation for college. Others are less fortunate.

         11  They must attend over-crowded, under-funded schools

         12  that cannot prepare them adequately for college.

         13                 When such inequities exist, justice

         14  demands that institutions step in and provide the

         15  opportunities for those who have been

         16  disenfranchised, who have been denied the

         17  opportunity.

         18                 This is what CUNY did under open

         19  admissions. It made admissions more liberal, giving

         20  many more students, especially students of color,

         21  their first chance at a first-rate education. In

         22  effect, it gave many students their first chance in

         23  life.

         24                 Many politicians and newspapers,

         25  however, attacked open admissions from the very
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          2  beginning. Before it even started people told me, "I

          3  hear CUNY has gone downhill." I said, "Well, how

          4  could it have gone downhill, since open admissions?

          5  Open admissions hasn't begun yet." But there was an

          6  extreme prejudice against it.

          7                 It is true that the City University

          8  had to offer many more remedial courses, but it

          9  became a pioneer in excellent remediation. The vast

         10  majority of students at the senior colleges

         11  completed their remedial courses in the open

         12  admissions era within one year and went on to

         13  perform as well as students who had not needed

         14  remediation. What's more, the CUNY colleges

         15  continued to shine on the accepted measures of

         16  quality under open admissions.

         17                 For example, between 1983 and 1992,

         18  in the heart of the open admissions era, 860 City

         19  College graduates had gone on to earn Ph.D degrees.

         20  This number is higher than that of our prestigious

         21  neighbor down the street, Columbia College. 860 got

         22  Ph.Ds and open admissions. Now, City College is a

         23  little bigger than Columbia, but compared to almost

         24  every other college in the metropolitan area,

         25  percentage-wise City College beat them. NYU. We had
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          2  a higher percentage of students getting Ph.Ds than

          3  NYU. We've talked about NYU as a great competitor,

          4  but we were doing better.

          5                 This was at a time when we were just

          6  letting students in. The admission standards were

          7  not that high. We offered remediation, and students

          8  took advantage of it, we offered support and the

          9  students took advantage of it, and they achieved

         10  remarkable success. Students went on, who could not

         11  have even gone to the senior college, went on to

         12  become doctors and lawyers, teachers, college

         13  professors, artists. Open admissions should be -- it

         14  was ridiculed and criticized and attacked, but it

         15  should be a model. It was in fact a model of what

         16  education can do and what opportunity can do if you

         17  provide it.

         18                 But the critics of open admissions

         19  finally won, and in 1999 the Board of Trustees voted

         20  to ban remediation at the senior colleges. The

         21  Trustees ruled that students must pass standardized

         22  tests to enter the senior colleges.

         23                 This ruling said it doesn't matter

         24  what a student's grades are, what a student's other

         25  credentials are. These factors don't even matter.
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          2  If they don't pass these standardized tests, they do

          3  not get in.

          4                 It's a test-dominated policy. The

          5  test-dominated policy has hurt students of color.

          6  Since 1999, three of CUNY's most prestigious

          7  colleges, City College, Baruch and Hunter, have

          8  suffered sharp drops in black enrollment. Between

          9  1999 and 2006, City College, where I teach,

         10  experienced an 11-point drop in the percentage of

         11  black students in the undergraduate student body.

         12                 This is not only in percentages, by

         13  the way. This is also in absolute numbers. We lost

         14  at least 500 students in this period. So, when you

         15  hear the statistics, the one, the place where I know

         16  best, City College, we have really suffered under

         17  this test-dominated policy.

         18                 To raise the standards now, raise the

         19  test scores, is simply going to make matters worse.

         20  And this charge, this idea that these drops are due

         21  to demographics, there has only been about 30,000,

         22  over the decade there has only been about 30,000

         23  African-Americans who left the City. This is not a

         24  huge exodus leaving New York City to account for

         25  these drops in blacks in CUNY at the prestigious
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          2  colleges, this has something to do with what's going

          3  on in the colleges.

          4                 Now, CUNY Central Administration

          5  argues that the new cutoff scores will ensure that

          6  students are prepared for college-level work. But

          7  these tests, which have great -- are illegitimacy,

          8  are weak or worthless predictors of success at

          9  colleges. The Rand Corporation found this over the

         10  SAT and the other tests they looked at, CUNY's own

         11  data indicates that the tests are poor or at best

         12  moderate predictors of success at the college. So,

         13  the University has been disproportionately turning

         14  away students of color on the basis of highly

         15  questionable spurious tests.

         16                 A recent study at City College found

         17  that the SAT among SEEK students cannot predict

         18  success at all. It has no bearing. Grades do. High

         19  school grades do predict success among the SEEK

         20  students. That was very clear. The SAT was worthless

         21  in predicting success. It makes sense that the

         22  student has the motivation to learn, has the

         23  motivation to study and work hard, grades will be up

         24  there and they're going to continue that path. I

         25  mean, if you want to predict, nothing really
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          2  predicts success that well. No set of factors

          3  predicts success that well. So, the really fair

          4  thing to do is give every student a chance, but

          5  that's not what we're doing. We're taking the

          6  test-dominated admissions policy and we're

          7  increasing its power by raising the cutoff scores.

          8                 Furthermore, there is growing

          9  evidence that the SAT is seriously biased. In the

         10  2003 issue of the Harvard Educational Review, Roy

         11  Friedal, who by the way, helped work on the SAT in

         12  his career, presented data that suggests that the

         13  SAT's language favors white, middle-class students.

         14  He presented data that shows that if you just take

         15  the difficult items on the SAT, African-Americans

         16  actually do better than whites, but the difficult

         17  items don't count -- you don't use that test, you

         18  use the overall test where the scores end up working

         19  against the African-American students.

         20                 Jay Rosner of Princeton Review

         21  Foundation suggest that the test-makers, the SAT

         22  test-makers, unknowingly reject items on which

         23  students of color outperform white students. This

         24  undoubtedly happens, because when you create a test,

         25  you strive for internal consistency, which means you
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          2  put in items that correlate highly with the other

          3  items on the test. If the items don't correlate with

          4  the general pattern of the items, those items are

          5  discarded. With the majority of white students doing

          6  well on certain items, the smaller number of

          7  African-American students, will do well, if they do

          8  well on items that don't correlate with that, those

          9  items are going to be thrown out. It's a bias

         10  inherent in test construction.

         11                 So, it's not that the people making

         12  the test, they don't even know what the racial

         13  background or ethnic background of the test takers

         14  is, but it's inherent that they will get rid of,

         15  they will discard these items, on which

         16  African-Americans do unusually well, compared to

         17  whites, because they're not -- that will weaken the

         18  internal consistency of the test.

         19                 You know, grads of student

         20  psychology, we all had to make tests and measure for

         21  internal consistency. We didn't know that this would

         22  come back to haunt us. So, the SAT is particularly

         23  biased.

         24                 As Sam has said, CUNY must stop

         25  giving make or break power to standardize tests.
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          2  Standardized tests are not predicting tests, what

          3  they do predict is your income, if you have a low

          4  income, you're going to do much poorer. As Sam has

          5  said, they do predict the color of your skin. They

          6  predict that very well. In fact, they predict some

          7  of these things so well, I think students applicants

          8  might as well just send in their zipcode or their

          9  family income, instead of their standardized test,

         10  their SAT scores, because it's just as good. The

         11  correlation is almost perfect between income and the

         12  standardized test scores.

         13                 Some civil rights leaders have said,

         14  it's so unjust. You have a system where you're

         15  relying on these standardized tests that do not

         16  predict success, but disproportionately reject

         17  students of color. It's a crisis, but it's a crisis,

         18  because it's a standardized test, everybody thinks

         19  standardized tests are wonderful and they measure

         20  something very valid - they don't.

         21                 We need to go to a system that

         22  holistically assesses students. A test just is one

         23  part of the overall process of looking at their

         24  grades, their motivation, their special talents,

         25  their letters of recommendation. We need a much more

                                                            118

          1  COMMITTEE ON HIGHER EDUCATION

          2  holistic admissions process, not one that goes by

          3  these standardized tests cutoff scores.

          4                 I think the tests are so vicious and

          5  others, several civil rights leaders have said that

          6  the standardized tests have replaced the dogs in the

          7  firehoses of the 1950s. Now we have something much

          8  subtler that can keep the white middle class in

          9  positions of power through education, and that's

         10  something everybody believes in, standardized test

         11  scores. Everybody assumes, if you don't have the

         12  test score, you won't succeed, but as I say, they

         13  did not measure -- the standardized tests do not

         14  predict success, they don't have predictable

         15  validity, and it's really awful that we're going on

         16  the basis of these tests.

         17                 Test-driven education also is killing

         18  education, schools like School of the Future, the

         19  Urban Academy, which are based on projects learning,

         20  where students have a high rate of success, as Sam

         21  mentioned, on that barometer of going to college and

         22  staying in college, these schools have very high

         23  success rates, if you take that as your measure of

         24  success, who goes into college and who stays in

         25  college, they have a crisis now because with all
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          2  this emphasis on the standardized tests, they don't

          3  have time for projects, the projects-based learning

          4  that engages students and helps them develop their

          5  minds and develop their perseverance, they have to

          6  shift over to test-driven education and test prep.

          7  Test prep is killing students' minds in all levels,

          8  and we're doing it again at the City University.

          9                 So, to wrap up, CUNY was founded to

         10  serve social justice, to give opportunities to those

         11  disenfranchised by our society. It initially opened

         12  its doors to working class European immigrants,

         13  later it opened its doors to women. Not until the

         14  fifties, by the way, did City College open the doors

         15  to women. And then with the open admissions

         16  revolution in 1969, CUNY opened its doors finally,

         17  widely to people of color. The plan to raise cut-off

         18  scores on these dubious standardized tests will

         19  unjustly shut the doors on many people of color. Our

         20  college should oppose this plan. I wholeheartedly

         21  agree we need a moratorium to think this out, to

         22  think if this is what we really want. We're tiering

         23  the University. What we're really trying to become

         24  is Yale-like, but City University is not, Yale

         25  should not be our model.
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          2                 You see what they're doing, and

          3  students can't pass the math. They're having trouble

          4  with math courses, so only let the students who

          5  automatically, probably they had the math they need

          6  anyway. You raise the standards enough, you'll

          7  become like Yale, and the students mostly can handle

          8  it. Who you produce is another story. But this is

          9  not our mission. Yet, opening the doors to people of

         10  color, as I said, widely, that was open admissions

         11  and it worked. It worked. We were up there competing

         12  with Columbia. It worked. Now we're shutting the

         13  doors on them. Our University is going to become

         14  more middle class, it's going to become white, it's

         15  going to become tiered. It's going to become much

         16  more elitist. And personally, Charles Barron, this

         17  is really -- I'm so glad you had the hearing. I am

         18  missing sleep, I'm worrying about everything I've

         19  worked for at the college. I've been there 37 years.

         20  Fought for open admissions for all this time, this

         21  is a juncture. This is a critical juncture. You are

         22  absolutely right in your introductory remarks, this

         23  is a critical time. We're changing the whole nature

         24  of it. I'm not sure I'm going to recognize my

         25  college in two or three years. It's got me at that
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          2  personal level. So, thank you for the hearing.

          3                 MR. SLAVIN: Good afternoon. My name

          4  is Robert Slavin. I reside in Woodside, Queens. I

          5  attend graduate school at Hunter College. My sister

          6  is finishing her Bachelor's Degree at Hunter

          7  College.

          8                 In 2000, CUNY started requiring

          9  in-coming undergraduates at seven of 11 senior

         10  colleges to pass CUNY's placement test, to score at

         11  least 75 on the English and math Regent's test, or

         12  score at least 480 out of 800 on each of the math

         13  and verbal sections of college boards SAT tests. The

         14  policy was introduced at the remaining four colleges

         15  in 2000.

         16                 The opponents warned the policy would

         17  lead to drop offs in enrollment. The opposite

         18  occurred. I'm generally in favor of the proposed

         19  increase in the minimum math test scores for

         20  admissions to CUNY's senior colleges. The proposal

         21  is to increase the math SAT score cut-off from 480

         22  to 510 at five of CUNY's senior colleges and to 500

         23  at the other five of these colleges.

         24                 Ultimately, students can meet the

         25  cutoff by submitting scores on the math Regent's
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          2  exam, or ACT's COMPASS placement test. The cutoff

          3  score for these tests will also be raised.

          4                 If CUNY's college students can't

          5  handle college-level requirements, admitting them to

          6  a college program will not do them or CUNY

          7  professors any good. In the current situation, math

          8  and statistics professors feel constrained to slow

          9  the pace of their courses to accommodate those

         10  students having difficulty.

         11                 This is unfair to those students who

         12  are ready for the material and who want to learn at

         13  a normal college pace. With 40 percent of CUNY

         14  senior college students failing, or withdrawing from

         15  introductory math classes, clearly these students

         16  are not handling the math requirements. I got that

         17  from a New York Times' article, appeared, I think it

         18  was July 28th. I wonder what percent of students

         19  passing the classes received less than a B minus,

         20  thereby performing less than reasonably well in the

         21  classes.

         22                 Raising admission test standards is a

         23  reasonable way to address the fact that many

         24  in-coming students are having difficulty in math.

         25                 However, I would suggest that your
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          2  Committee and the CUNY Administration also consider

          3  other ways to improve the performance of CUNY senior

          4  college undergraduates in their introductory math

          5  classes.

          6                 It should be noted that the average

          7  math SAT score of U.S. college-bound seniors was 515

          8  this past academic year. I do not know the exact

          9  percentiles for 480, but I suspect it lies between

         10  the 40th and 45th percentile of test-takers.

         11                 One would have hoped if one

         12  eliminated the bottom 40 to 45 percent of applying

         13  seniors in terms of their math SAT scores, as CUNY

         14  senior colleges generally do, more than 60 percent

         15  of the remainder could pass their first math class

         16  at one of CUNY's senior colleges. Unfortunately,

         17  this is not the case.

         18                 It is true that many American

         19  colleges share CUNY's experience of a large portion

         20  of its students failing to pass their initial

         21  college math classes. However, CUNY should look into

         22  ways, into changing the ways it teaches its

         23  introductory math classes so that more than 60

         24  percent of students will pass them.

         25                 Perhaps there should be regular
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          2  tutoring sessions for students having difficulty.

          3  Hopefully changes to courses could be made in a way

          4  that will not significantly reduce learning for

          5  those students not having problems.

          6                 I recently came across something else

          7  I think is relevant to improving the math

          8  performance of CUNY undergraduates. In a recent New

          9  York Times' article, the Dean of Admissions at

         10  Harvard College said Harvard had found SAT scores to

         11  be the third best predictor of good undergraduate

         12  grades at his school. At Harvard, SAT subject test

         13  scores are the best predictor. Harvard requires

         14  applicants to take three of these. High school

         15  grades are the second best predictor.

         16                 If CUNY's goal is to have more of its

         17  undergraduates pass its math classes, then it may

         18  benefit more from raising its high school math grade

         19  standards, then by raising its SAT math cut-off.

         20                 Perhaps CUNY should also consider

         21  requiring applicants to take a few of the SAT

         22  subject tests. And there was a passage from a recent

         23  New York Times' article, which I thought was

         24  relevant, which said, "Although many more students

         25  take the SAT than the subject tests, 'Lawrence Bond,
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          2  the College Board's Vice President of Operations,

          3  said,' "for kids who take both, 30 percent do

          4  differently on them."

          5                 In conclusion, I support several

          6  steps be taken to address the problem CUNY students

          7  have with their math class. It is good that CUNY is

          8  raising its math SAT cutoff scores by 20 to 30

          9  percent, it will be raising its other math

         10  qualifying test scores, as well. CUNY may find in

         11  the future it will have to raise these cutoffs even

         12  further. CUNY should also consider different ways

         13  that it could teach its math courses so that more

         14  students could pass them.

         15                 Finally, CUNY should be more

         16  stringent about its high school math grades that it

         17  finds acceptable from applicants. It may wish to

         18  require applicants to take the SAT subject tests to

         19  better predict undergraduate performance.

         20                 My understanding is that CUNY plans

         21  to increase its minimum test scores for reading and

         22  writing in the near future. My comments today

         23  largely apply to these ideas as well.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Well, I want to

         25  thank all of you for your testimony. We are
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          2  definitely going to take up the recommendations,

          3  particularly of Dr. Sam Anderson. I think it is

          4  important for us to seek to consult with these

          5  specialists, experts in mathematics, and do that

          6  conference. And I was the Chair of -- the President

          7  of the SEEK Student Committee at Hunter College, and

          8  I remember fighting these same issues in the

          9  seventies around standards, and we did get one or

         10  two courses, remedial courses, accredited, one or

         11  two credits. That's another good idea, because I

         12  know it did impact students psychologically when you

         13  can sit in a college class and actually get credit

         14  for a course.

         15                 I want to particularly thank Selma

         16  Botman. I thank you for staying. I thank you for

         17  your testimony. It was very, very useful. I think

         18  we're going to be able to work a lot of wonderful

         19  things out, but I go back to Dr. Anderson again,

         20  there's only two influences on intelligence and

         21  behavior, either it's genetic or it's environmental.

         22  It's something in the environment that's not

         23  behaving right, or it's something in our genes. I

         24  think every child is educable, and I don't

         25  understand why they're not being educated. I do, but
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          2  I say I don't, because that's rhetorical, but I hope

          3  that you benefitted from this hearing, and once

          4  again, I strongly suggest that we put a moratorium

          5  on it, have some more discussion, the summit and try

          6  to work with other educators and reach out, like the

          7  work you're doing and reaching out to the Board of

          8  Education or Department of Education, those are

          9  positive things. If we can put a moratorium on that

         10  for now, and then discuss it further to see if, in

         11  fact, it should happen, if something else could

         12  happen to reach what we all want, retention,

         13  recruitment and graduating of those who have been

         14  locked out of the American process of education for

         15  a very, very long time.

         16                 Thank you very much, and this hearing

         17  is adjourned.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 4:00 p.m.)
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